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July 27,2010

Ms. Diane Rauh, City Clerk
City of Des Moines
400 Robert D. Ray Drive
Des Moines, IA 50309

SUBJECT: Des Moines Water Works - 2009 Audit Reports

Dear Diane:

Audited financial statements and accompanying reports for Des Moines Water Works for
the 2009 calendar year are enclosed. These reports were prepared by McGladrey &
Pullen. The enclosed information was presented and received by the Board of Water
Works Trustees at their meeting held June 29,2010.

Robert Riley, DMWW Board Chair, has asked that you please distribute a copy to the
Mayor and to each City Council member.

Sincerely,

:zt:~~
Controller

Enclosures
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McGladrey & Pullen
Certified Public Accountants

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is a member firm of RSM International -
an affliation of separate and independent legal entities.



McGladrey& PulJen
Certfied Public Accountants

June 9, 2010

Board of Water Works Trustees
Des Moines Water Works
2201 George Flagg Parkway
Des Moines, Iowa 50321

We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the basic financial statements and compliance of Des
Moines Water Works for the years ended December 31,2009 and 2008. This report summarizes certain matters
required by professional standards to be communicated to you in your oversight responsibility for Des Moines Water
Works' financial and compliance reporting process.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Water Works Trustees and management
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. It wil be our pleasure
to respond to any questions you have regarding this report. We appreciate the opportunity to continue to be of
service to Des Moines Water Works.

//~//~/ L¿?

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is a member firm of RSM International -
an affliation of separate and independent legal entrties.
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Required Communications

Auditing guidance requires the auditor to communicate certain matters to keep those charged with governance
adequately informed about matters related to the financial statement audit that are, in our professional judgment,
signifcant and relevant to the responsibilities of those charged with governance in overseeing the financial reporting
process. The following summarizes these communications:

Area Comments

Auditor's Responsibilty Under Professional
Standards

Our responsibilty under auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, has been described to you in our
arrangement letter dated January 4,2010.

Accounting Practices Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies

Management has the ultimate responsibility for the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used by the Des
Moines Water Works. In the current year, Des Moines Water
Works adopted the following Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement.

. GASB Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real
Estate Held as Investments by Endowments. This
Statement establishes consistent standards for the
reporting of land and other real estate held as
investments. Endowments were previously required
to report their land and other real estate held for
investment purposes at historical cost. However,
such investments are reported at fair value by similar
entities, such as pension plans. The Statement
requires endowments to report land and other real
estate investments at fair value. The changes in the
fair value are to be reported as investment income.
This Statement has no effect on the Des Moines
Water Works financial statements.

Significant or Unusual Transactions

We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions or
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging
areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus.

Alternative Treatments Discussed with Management

We did not discuss with management any alternative
treatments within generally accepted accounting principles
for accounting policies and practices related to material
items during the current audit period.
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Area

Management's Judgments and Accounting
Estimates

Audit Adjustments

Disagreements with Management

Consultations with Other Accountants

Significant Issues Discussed with
Management

Diffculties Encountered in Performing the
Audit

Accounting Pronouncements

Letter Communicating Significant Deficiencies
and Material Weaknesses

Certain Written Communications Between
Management and Our Firm

Comments

Summary information about the process used by
management in formulating partcularly sensitive accounting
estimates and about our conclusions regarding the

reasonableness of those estimates is in the attached
"Summary of Accounting Estimates".

Audit adjustments recorded by Des Moines Water Works
are attached with the representation letter included with
Exhibit A.

We encountered no disagreements with management over
the application of significant accounting principles, the basis
for management's judgments on any significant matters, the
scope of the audit, or significant disclosures to be included in
the financial statements.

We are not aware of any consultations management had
with other accountants about accounting or auditing matters.

No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed
or were the subject of correspondence with management.

We did not encounter any diffculties in dealing with
management during the audit.

Please refer to Note 9 of the financial statements for new
accounting pronouncements that have been recently issued
that may affect the entity financial reporting in future periods.

We identified no significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses during our audit of the financial statements. We
have issued a report on internal control over financial
reporting and on compliance and other matters based on an
audit of financial statements performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards. This report is in Exhibit A.

Copies of certain written communications between our firm
and the management of Des Moines Water Works are
attached as Exhibit A.

We have also separately issued reports on statements of
cash receipts and disbursements of Board of Water Works
Trustees, Billing and Collecting Agent for the Sewer Service,
Solid Waste Collection and Storm Water Management
Charges for the City of Des Moines, Iowa.
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Des Moines Water Works

Summary of Accounting Estimates
Year Ended December 31,2009

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon
management's current judgment. The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and experience
about past and current events and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish to monitor throughout the
year the process used to compute and record these accounting estimates. The following describes the significant
accounting estimates reflected in the entity's December 31, 2009 financial statements:

Area Accounting Policy Estimation Process Comments

Pension Plan and Other Pension plan and other The employee-related We tested the information

Postemployment postemployment benefit factors include turnover, provided to the actuary. We

Benefit Plan plan accounting and participation, retirement believe the process used by

Assumptions disclosures are based age and mortality. These management is reasonable.

upon numerous factors and the estimated
assumptions and discount rate and rate of

estimates, including the return are based upon

expected rate of historical and general

investment return on market data. The Water

retirement plan assets, Works used actuary to
the interest rate used to compute the balances

determine the present and disclosures.

value of liabilities and
certain employee-related
factors.

Depreciable Life and The depreciable life of The determination is We believe the estimates and

Salvage Value of capital assets is set at the made at the time the process used by

Capital Assets estimated useful life of asset is placed into management is reasonable.
the related asset. service and involves

Salvage value is based various judgments and
upon an estimate of what assumptions, including

the value of the property resale value of used
will be when the Water equipment, estimated
Works is through using useful life and prior

the related asset. experience.

Fair Value of Financial The Water Works records Investment securities are We tested the propriety of

Instruments the estimated fair value of based on quoted market information underlying

its investments. prices. management's estimates.
Based on our procedures, we
conclude that management's
approach is reasonable.

Unbiled Revenue The Water Works records The estimated receivable We tested the information

a receivable for the is based on past history used to calculate the

estimated amount of and cycles billed after the estimated receivable and

revenue related to end of the year. concluded that

unbilled water at the end management's approach is

of the year. reasonable.
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Exhibit A - Certain Written Communications Between
Management and Our Firm



McGladrey & Pullen
Cerfied Pubfic Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Board of Water Works Trustees
Des Moines Water Works
Des Moines, Iowa

We have audited the financial statements of Des Moines Water Works as of and for the year ended December 31,
2009, and have issued our report thereon dated June 9, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

The pension trust fund statement of net assets and statement of changes in net assets were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards; therefore, this report does not extend to the pension trust fund.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Des Moines Water Works' internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Des Moines Water Works'
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Des Moines Water Works' internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibilty that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements wil
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is a member firm of RsM International -
an affliation of separate and independent legal entities.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Des Moines Water Works' financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certin provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board and others within the entity and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

//~/ /~/ LL,P
Davenport, Iowa
June 9, 2010
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McGladrey & Pullen
Certified Public Accountants

Mi:Gladrey & Pullen, UP
201 N. Harrison St. Ste. 300, Davenport.IA 52BOl-1999

o 563.BBB.4140 F 563.324.6939

ww.mcgladre.com

January 4, 2010

Board of Trustees
Des Moines Water Works
2201 George Flagg Parkway
Des Moines, Iowa 50321.1190

Attention: Peggy Freese, Director of 
Finance

This letter is to explain our, understanding of the arrangements for the services we are to perform for Des Moines
Water Works for the year ended December 31 ,2009. We ask that you either confirm or amend this understanding.

Audit Services

We wil perform an audit of Des Moines Water Works' basic financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2009. We understand that these financial statements wil be prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The objective of an audit of financial statements 

is to

express an opinion on those statements.

We are responsible for forming and expressing 
an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been

prepared by management with the oversight of the Board of Trustees and Finance and Audit Committee are
presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

You have informed us that you have not expended more than $500,000 in federal awards for 

the fiscal year ended

December 31,2009, the effect of which would require an audit performed in accordance with the Single Audit Act,
OMB Circular No. A-133 and OMB's Compliance Supplement.

We wil conduct the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement whether caused by error or fraud. Accordingly, a material
misstatement may remain undetected. Also, an audit is not designed to detect 

errrs or fraud that are immaterial to

the financial statements. The determination of abuse if subjective; therefore, Government Auditing Standards do not
expect us to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse.

An audit of financial statements also includes obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including
its internal control, suffcient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, and to design
the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal
control or to identify significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, we will communicate to management
and the Board of Trustees and Finance and Audit Committee any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses that
become known to us during the course of the audit.

McGladrey & Pullen. LLP is a member firm of RSM International -

an affiliation of separate and independent legal entities.



Des Moines Water Works

January 4,2010
Page 2

We will also communicate to the Board of Trustees and Finance and Audit Committee (a) any fraud involving senior
management and fraud (whether caused by senior management or other employees) that causes a material
misstatement of the financial statements, (b) any fraud, ilegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts or grant
agreements and abuse that come to our attention (unless they are clearly inconsequential), (c) any disagreements
with management and other serious diffcultes encountered in performing the audit, and (d) various matters related
to the entity's accounting policies and financial statements.

In addition to our reports on the Des Moines Water Works' financial statements, we wil also issue the following
reports or types of reports:

. Reports on internal control related to the financial statements. These report(s) will describe the scope of
testing of internal control and the results of our tests of internal controls.

. Reports on compliance with laws, regulations, and the provision of contracts or grant agreements. We wil

report on any noncompliance which could have a material effect on the financial statements.

. Report on compliance with bond covenants.

. Report to the Board of Water Works Trustees, Billng and Collection Agent for the Storm Water

management charges for the City of Des Moines, Iowa, statements of cash receipts and disbursements.

. Report to the Board of Water Works Trustees, Agent for Sewer Service Charges for the Storm Water

management charges for the City of Des Moines, Iowa, statements of cash receipts and disbursements.

. Report to the Board of Water Works Trustees, Agent for the Storm Water management charges for the City

of Des Moines, Iowa, statements of cash receipts and disbursements.

We wil also perform an audit of the Des Moines Water Works Pension Plan.

You have informed us there are no component units that are required to be included as part of the Des Moines Water
Works' basic financial statements.

Our reports on internal control 
will include any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the system of

which we become aware as a result of obtaining an understanding of internal contra! and performing tests of internal
control consistent with requirements of the standards and circulars identified above. Our reports on compliance will
address material errors, fraud, abuse, violations of compliance requirements, and other responsibilities imposed by
state and federal statutes and regulations and assumed by contracts; and any state or federal grant, entitlement of
loan program questioned costs of which we become aware, consistent with requirements of the standards and
circulars identified above.

Des Moines Water Works' Responsibilties

Management is responSible for the financial statements, including the selection and application of accounting
policies, adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements, and for making all financial records and
related information available to us. Management is responsible for providing us with a written management
representation letter confirming certain representations made during the course of our audit of the financial
statements and affrming to us that it believes the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole and to t11e opinion units of the financial statements.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
informing us of all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of such controls of
which it has knowledge.



Des Moines Water Works
January 4,2010
Page 3

Management is responsible for identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with the laws and regulations
applicable to its activities, and for informing us about all known material violations of such laws or regulations. In
addition, management is responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and
detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management,
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and others where the fraud could have a material effect on
the financial statements. Management is also responsible for informing us of its knowledge of any allegations of
fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity received in communications from employees, former employees,
analysts, regulators, or others.

The Board of Trustees and Finance and Audit Committee are responsible for informing us of its views about the risks

of fraud within the entity, and its knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity.

Des Moines Water Works agrees that our report on the financial statements wil not be included in an offcial
statement or other document involved with the sale of debt instruments without our prior consent. Additionally, if Des
Moines Water Works intends to publish or otherwise reproduce the financial statements and/or make reference to us
or our audit, you agree to provide us with printer's proofs or a master for our review and consent before reproduction
and/or release occurs. You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our consent
before it is distributed or released. Our fees for any additional services that may be required under our qualify
assurance systems as a result of the above wil be established with you at the time such services are determined to
be necessary. In the event our auditor/client relationship has been terminated when the Organization seeks such
consent, we wil be under no obligation to grant such consent or approval.

Our professional standards require that we perform certain additional procedures, on current and previous years'
engagements, whenever a partner or professional employee leaves the firm and is subsequently employed by 

or

associated with a client. Accordingly, Des Moines Water Works agrees it will compensate McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
for any additional costs incurred as a result of the employment of a partner or professional employee of McGladrey &
Pullen, LLP.

During the course of our engagement, we may accumulate records containing data that should be reflected in the
Des Moines Water Works' books and records. The Water Works will determine that all such data, if necessary, wil
be so reflected. Accordingly, the Water Works wil not expect us to maintain copies of such records in our
possession.

The assistance to be supplied by District personnel, including the preparation of schedules and analyses of accounts,
has been discussed and coordinated with you. The timely and accurate completion of this work is an essential
condition to our completion of the audit and issuance of our audit report.

Other Terms of our Engagement

Des Moines Water Works hereby indemnifies McGladrey & Pullen, LLP and its partners and employees and holds
them harmless from all claims, liabilities, losses, and costs arising in circumstances where there has been a known
misrepresentation by a member of Des Moines Water Works' management, regardless of whether such person was
acting in Des Moines Water Works' interest. This indemnification will survive termination of this letter.

Our fees are based upon the time required by the individuals assigned to the engagement, plus direct expenses.
Interim billings will be submitted as work progresses and as expenses are incurred. Billings are due upon
submission. Our fee for the services described in the letter will not exceed $43,550 for the financial statement audit,
excluding the Pension Audit, unless the scope of the engagement is changed, the assistance which the Water Works
has agreed to furrish is not provided, or unexpected conditions are encountered, in which case we will discuss the
situation with you before proceeding. All other provisions of this letter wil survive any fee adjustment.



Des Moines Water Works
January 4, 2010
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In the event we are requested or authorized by Des Moines Water Works or are required by Des Moines Water
Works or are required by government regulation, subpoena, or other legal process to produce our documents or our
personnel as witnesses with respect to our engagements for Des Moines Water Works,Des Moines Water Works will,
so long as we are not a part to the proceeding in which the information is sought, reimburse us for our professional
time and expenses, as well as the fees and expenses of our counsel, incurred in responding to such requests.

The working papers for this engagement are the property of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP. However, you acknowledge
and grant your assent that representatives of the cognizant or oversight agency or their designee, other government
audit staffs, and the U.S. Government Accountabilty Offce shall have access to the audit working papers upon their
request; and that we shall maintain the working papers for a period of at least three years after the date of the report,
or for a longer period if we are requested to do so by the cognizant or oversight agency. Access to requested
workpapers will be provided under the supervision of McGladrey & Pullen audit personnel and at a location
designated by our Firm.

From time to time and depending upon the circumstances, we may use third-party service providers to assist us in
providing professional services to you. In such circumstances, it may be necessary for us to disclose confidential
client information to them. We enter into confidentiality agreements with all third-party service providers and we are
satisfied that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential
information to others.

If circumstances arise relating to the conditions of your records, the availabilty of appropriate audit evidence, or
indications of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements because of error, fraudulent
financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or noncompliance which in our professional judgment prevent us from
completing the audit or forming an opinion, we retain the unilateral right to take any course of action permitted by
professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or issue a report, or withdrawal from the
engagement.

The two overarching principles of the independence standards of the Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States provide that management is responsible for the substantive outcomes of
the works, and therefore, has a responsibility and is able to make any informed judgment on the results of the
services described above, Accordingly, the Des Moines Water Works agrees to the following:

. Michelle Holland, Controller, wil be accountable and responsible for overseeing the draft of financial

statements and trial balance adjustments.

. Des Moines Water Works wil establish and monitor the performance of the the draft of financial statements
and trial balance adjustments to ensure that they meet management's objectives.

. Des Moines Water Works wil make any decisions that involve management functions related to the draft of
financial statements and trial balance adjustments and accepts full responsibility for such decisions.

. Des Moines Water Works will evaluate the adequacy of services performed and any findings that result.

In connection with compliance with the Health Insurance Portabilty and Accountability Act (HIPAA):

a. McGladrey & Pullen, LLP agrees not to use or disclose Protected Health Information (as defined in 45 CFR
160.1 03) other than as permitted or required by this arrangement letter (the "Agreement"), as required by
operation of law, or as required by auditing standards or accounting principles.

b. McGladrey & Pullen, LLP agrees to use appropriate safeguards 10 prevent use or disclosure of the Protected
Health Information other than as provided for by this Agreement. The Firm agrees to implement administrative,
physical and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and
availability of electronic Protected Health Information that it creates, receives, maintains or transmits.
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c. McGladrey & Pullen, LLP agrees to report to Des Moines Water Works any use or disclosure of the Protected
Health Information not provided for by this Agreement and/or any Security Incident (as defined in 45 CFR
164.304) of which it becomes aware.

d. McGladrey & Pullen, LLP agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom it provides
Protected Health Information, received from, or created or received by McGladrey & Pullen, LLP on behalf of
Des Moines Water Works agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this Agreement to
McGladrey & Pullen, LLP with respect to such information, Moreover, the Firm agrees to ensure that any such
agent or subcontractor to whom it provides electronic Protected Health lnformation agrees to implement
reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect it.

e. Des Moines Water Works shall not request McG!adrey & Pullen, LLP to use or disclose Protected Health
lnformatìon in any manner that would not be permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by Des Moines Water
Works.

f. McGladrey & Pullen, LLP may use and disclose Protected Health Information (a) for the proper management
and administration of its business under this contract, (b) to provide Data Aggregation Services relating to the
Health Care Operations of Des Moines Water Works, and (c) to report violations of law to appropriate federal
and state authonties, all as provided in the Privacy Rule.

g. McGladrey & Pullen, LLP agrees to document such disclosures of Protected Health Information made by
McGladrey & Pullen, LLP and information related to such disclosures as would be required for Des Moines
Water Works to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health
Information in accordance with the Privacy Rule. McGladrey & Pullen, LLP further agrees to provide Des
Moines Water Works or an individual, upon request, with such information to permit Des Moines Water Works
to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in
accordance with 45 CFR Sec. 164.528.

h. At no time will McGladrey & Pullen, LLP have possession and/or control of Des Moines Water Works' patients'
'Designated Record Sets' or any copies thereof. The Protected Health Information created or maintained by
McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is not part of the patient's Designated Record Set and is, therefore, not subject to the
Privacy Rule's patient access or amendment rights. Consequently, 45 CFR Part 164.524 and 164.526 ¡and,
therefore, 45 CFR Part 164,504(e)(2)(ii) subparts (E) and (F)J are not applicable to McGladrey& Pullen, LLP.

i. McGladrey & Pullen, LLP agrees to make its internal practices, books, and records, including policies and
procedures and Protected Health Informatlon, relating to the use and disclosures of Protected Health
Information received from Des Moines Water Works available to Des Moines Water Works or the Secretary of
the U,S. Department of Health and Human Services or his/her designee promptly for purposes of determining
the Des Moines Water Works' compliance with the Privacy Regulations.

j, Term and Termination

i. The Term of this Agreement regarding Protected Health Information shall be effective as of January 4,
2010, and shall terminate when all of the Protected Health Information provided by Des Moines Water
Works to McGladrey & Pullen, LLP or received by McGladrey & Pullen, LLP on behalf of Des Moines
Water Works, is destroyed. If it is infeasible to destroy Protected Health Information, protections of this
contract are extended to such information, in accordance with the termination provisions in this Section.

II. T emiination for Cause. Upon Des Moines Water Works' knowledge of a material breach by McGladrey &
Pullen, LLP, Des Moines Water Works shall either:



Des Moines WaterWorks
January4,2010
Page 6

1. Provide an opportunity for McGladrey & Pullen, LLP to cure the breach or end the violation and
terminate this agreement if McGladrey & Pullen, LLP does not cure the breach or end the violation

within the time specified by Des Mo.ines Water Works,

2. Immediately terminate this Agreement, if McGladrey & Pullen, LLP has breached a material term

of this Agreement and cure is not possible; or

3. If neither termination nor cure are feasible, Des Moines Water Works shan report the violation to

the Secretary of the Departent of Health & Human Services.

iit Effect of Termination.

1. Except as provided in paragraph (ij)of this section, upon termination of this Agreement, for any
reason, McGladrey& Pullen, LLP shall destroy 

all Protected Health Information received from Des

Moines Water Works, or received by McGladrey & Pullen, LLP on behalf of Des Moines Water
Works in accordance with their audit record retention policy. This provision shall apply to

Protected Health Information that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of McGladrey &
Pullen, lLP, McGladrey & Pullen, LLP shall retain no copies of the Protected Health Information
beyond their normal retention period as required for their compliance with applicable professional
standards.

2. In the event that McGladrey & Pullen, lLP determines that destroying the Protected Health

Information is infeasible, we shall provide to Des Moines Water Works notification of the
conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. Upon any notice that destruction of Protected
Health Information is infeasible, McGladrey & Pullen, LLP shall extend the protections of this
Agreement to such Protected Health Information and limit further uses and disclosures of such
Protected Health Information to those purposes that make destruction infeasible, for so long as
McGladrey & Pullen, LLP maintains such Protected Health Information.

This letter constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of agreement between McGladrey & Pullen and Des
Moines Water Works, superseding all proposals, oral or written, and all other communication, with respect to the
terms of the engagement between the parties.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, a copy of our most recent peer review report and applicable
letter of comment is enclosed for your information.

If this letter defines the arrangements as you understand them, please sign and date the enclosed copy, and return it
to us. We appreciate your business.

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

4' IJ /1 Qi i-id~ V L-~
Angela Burch, Director

Co~aterWorkS:

9'~ 2G ,2010



To the Parers ofMcGladrey & Pullen, LLP
and the Center for Public Company Audit 

Firms Peer Review Committee

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accountig and 
auditig practice of

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP (the Firm) applicable to non-SEC issuer in effect for the year ended
April 30,2007. The Fir's accountig and auditig practice applicable to SEC issuers was not

reviewed by us, since the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB) is 
responsible

for inspecting that porton of the Firm's accounting and auditig practice in accordance with
PCAOB requirements. A system of quality control encompasses the Firm's organizational
strctue and the policies adopted and procedures established to provide it with reasonable

assurance of complying with professional standards. The elements of quality control are
described in the Statements on Quality Control Standards issued by the Amercan Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the AICP A). The design of the system, and compliance with it, are
the responsibilties of the Fir. Our responsibilty is to express an opinon on the design of 

the

system, and the Fir's compliance with that system based on our review.

Our review was conducted in accrdance with standards established by the Peer Review
Commttee of the Center for Public Company Audit Firs and included procedures to plan and
perform the review that are sumarzed in the attached description of the peer review process.
Ou review would not necessarly disclose all weaknesses in the system of quality control or all
instances oflack of compliance with it since it was based on selective tests. Because there are
inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of quality control, departes from the
system may occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of a system of quality
control to future periods is subject to the risk that the system of quality control may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice applicable
to the non-SEC issuers ofMcGladrey & Pullen, LLP in effect for the year ended April 

30, 2007,

has been designed to meet the requirements of 
the quality control standards for an accounting

and auditing practice established by the AICP A, and was complied with durng the year then
ended to provide the Firm with reasonable assurance of complying with applicable professional
standards.

* * *

As is customary in a peer review, we have issued a letter under this date that sets fort comments
relating to certain policies and procedures or compliance with them. The matters described in the
letter were not considered to be of sufficient significance to affect the opinion expressed in this
report.

J)KD ) J-¿.-¥

November 30, 2007

bkd.com

Wells Fargo Cenler 1700 Linco Street, Suite 1400 Denver, CO 8020-4514
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Attachment to the Peer Review Report of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
Description of the Peer Review Process

Overview

Firms enrolled in the AlCP A Ceter for Public Company Audit Firms (the Center) Pee Revew Progrm have their system of
quality control penodically reviewed by independent peers. These reviews are system and compliance onented with the
objectives of evaluating the following:

. Whether the reviewed firm's system of quality control for its accounting and auditing practice applicable to non-SEC
issuers has bee designed to meet the requirements of the Quality Control Standards established by the AlCP A.

. Whether the reviewed firm's quality control policies and procedures applicable to non-SEC issuers were being

complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of complying with professional standards.

A peer review is based on selecive tests and directed at assessing whether the design of and compliance with the finn's system of
quality control for its accounting and auditing practice applicable to non-SEC issuers provides the firm with reasonable, not
absolute, assurace of complying with professional standards. Consequently a peer review on the finn's system of quality control
is not inteded to, and does not, provide assurance with respcct to any individual engagement conducted by the firm or that none
of the financial statements audited by the finD should be restated.

The Center's Peer Review Committee (PRC) establishes and maintains peer review standards. At regular meetings and though
report evaluation task forces, the PRC considers each pee review, evaluate the reviewer's competence and peifonnance, and
examines ever report, letter of comments, and accompanying response from the reviewed firm that states its corrective action
plan before the peer review is finalized. The Center's staff plays a key role in overseeing the perormance of peer reviews
working closely with the peer review teams and the PRC.

Once the PRC accts the peer review reports, letters of comments, and reviewed finns' responses, these documents are
maintained in a fie available to the public. In some situations, the public file also includes a signed undertaking by the firm
agreeing to speeific follow-up action requested by the PRe.

Firms that perform audits or playa substantial role in the audit of one or more SEC issuers, as defined by the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB), are required to be registered with and have their accounting and auditing practice
applicable to SEC issuers inspected by the PCAOB. Therefore, we did not review the finn's accounting and auditing practice
applicable to SEC issuers.

Planning the Review for the Firm's Accounting and Auditing Practice Applicable to Non-SEe Issuers

To plan the review of McGIadrey & Pullen, LLP, we obtained an uiiderstanding of(l) the nature and extent of the firm's

accounting and auditing practice, and (2) the design of the firm's system of quality control suffcient to assess the inherent and
control risks implicit in its practice. Inherent risks were assessed by obtaining an understanding of the finn's practice, such as the
industries of its clíents and other factors of complexity in serving those clients, and the organization of the finn's personnel into
practice units. Control risks were assessed by obtaining an understanding of the design of the firm's system of quality control,
including its audit methodology, and monitonng procedures. Assessing contrl risk is the process of evaluating the effectiveness
of the reviewed firm's system of quality control in preventing the perfonnance of engagements that do not comply with
professional standards.

Performing the Review for the Firm's Accounting and Auditing Practice Applicable to Noii~SEC Issuers

Based on our assessment of the combined level of inherent and control risks, we identified practice units and selected
engagements within those units to test for compliance with the firm's system of quality control. The engagements selected for
review included engagements performed under the Government Auditing Standards, audits performed under FDlCIA, multi-
offce audits, and audits of Employee Benefit Plans. The engagements selected for review represented a cross-section of the
finn's accounting and auditing practice with emphasis on higher-risk engagements. The engagement reviews included examining
working paper files and repoits and interviewing engagement personnel.

The scope of the peer review also included examining selected administrative and personnel files to determine compliance with
the firm's policies and procedures for the elements of quality control pertaining to independence, integrity, and objectivity;
personnel management; and acceptance and continuance of clients and engagements. Prior to concluding the review, we
reassessed the adequacy of scope and conducted a meeting with finn management to discuss our findings and recommendations.



To the Parer ofMcGladrey & Pullen, LLP
and the Center for Public Company Audit Fin Pee Revew Committee

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of
McGladrey & Pullen, LLP (the Firm) applicable to non~SEC issuers in effect for the year ended
April 30, 2007. The matters described below were not considered to be of suffcient signficance

to afect the opinon expressed in tht report which should be read in conjunction with ths letter.

Engagement Performance

Comment - The firm has followed two different methodologies for supportg a low control risk
asessment for cert relevant assertions for signficant account balances. Substantially all

audits in a niche industr practice are pedormed using one methodology, while the rest of 
the

finn uses the methodology in the firm's commercial audit manual. TIie alternative niche practce
allowed for lower testing requirements than the standard approach in the manual. The support for
the alterative approach for sampling is not documented in the manual, however, no departues
from generally accepted auditing standads were noted.

Recommendation - We believe the alternative approach should be reconsidered. Any 
approved

alterative methodology should be appropriately documented in the audit manual.

~c3Kf) , ¿l:~
November 30,2007
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McGladrey & Pullen
Certiied Public Accountants

November 30,2007

Center for Public Company Audit Firms Peer Review Committee
C/o American Institute of Certified Public Accountan ts
Practice Monitoring Department
220 Leigh Farm Road
Durham, NC 27707

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This letter represents our response to the letter of comments issued in connection with our
firm's peer review for the year ended April 30, 2007 and should be read in conjunction with that
letter. Implementation of the actions set out in this letter wil be monitored in connection ""ith
our annual inspection program.

Prior to January 31, 2008, the Firm's National Offce of Audit and Accounting ,.vll reconsider
the methods used for testing key controls in this niche industry and either conform the
methodology to the methodology specified in the commercial audit manual or document the
basis for any approved alternative methodology in the respective industry manuaL.

//~//~/ ¿¿r'

McGladrey & Pullen. LLP is a member firm of RSM International,
an affliation of separate and independenllegal entities.



DES MOINES WATER WOIIS
Board of Water Works Trustees

2201 George Flagg Paray I Des Moines, Iowa 50321-1190

Des Moines

Water W'rks
Water You Can Trust for Life

I (515) 283-8700 I www.dmww.com

June 9, 2010

McGladrey & Pullen, LlP
201 North Harnson Street
Suite 300
Davenport, Iowa 52801

In connectin with your audit of the basic financial statements of Des Moines Water Works, Iowa as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, we confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation in the
financial statements of financial position, changes in financial position, and cash flows in conformity with accounting
principles generally accpted in the United States of America.

We confrm to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of June 9, 2010 the following representations made to you
during your audits:

1. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformit with accounting principles

generally acpted in the United States of America.

2. There are no organizations that are a part of this reporting enti or with which we have a relationship, as
these organizations are defined in Section 2100 of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board's
Codifcation of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reportng Standards, that are:

a. Component unit.

b. Other organizations for which the nature and signifcance of their re~ationship with Des Moines Water

Works are such that exclusion would cause the reportng entity's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete.

c. Jointly governed organizatins in which we participated.

3. We have identified for you all of our funds and identifiable business-type activities.

4. We have properly classifed all funds and activities.

5. We are responsible for compliance with laws and regulations applicable to Des Moines Water Works,
including adopting, approving and amending budgets.

6. We have identified and disclosed to you all laws and regulations that have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific

activties in separate funds.



McGladrey & PuUen, LLP

June 9, 2010
Page 2

7. We have made available to you:

a. All financial recrds and related data of all activiies, including those of all progras, departents,
projects, activities, etc., in existence at any time during the period covered by your audit.

b. All minutes of the meetings of the goveming board and committees of board members or summaries

of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

8. We have no knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud afecting the entit involving:

a. Management.

b. Employees who have signifcant roles in the intemal control, or

c. Oters where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial sttements.

9. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls to provide
reasonable assurance that fraud is prevented and detected.

10. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting Des Moines Water Works
received in communications from employees, former employee, analysts, regulators, short sellers or
others.

11. We are aware of no signifcant defiiences, including matenal weaknesses, in the design or operation of
internal controls that could adversely affect the entity's abilit to record, process, summanze and report
financial data.

12. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or

deficiencies in, financial reportng practices.

13. We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classifcation of assets and
liabilites.

14. The following have been properly recorded and/or disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Related-part transactions, including those with other organizations for which the nature and

signifcance of their relationship with Des Moines Water Works are such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete all as defined in Section
2100 of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board's Codification of Governmental Accounting
and Financial Reportng Standards, and interfund transactons, including interfund accounts and
advances receivable and payable, sale and purchase transactions, interfund transfers, long-term
loans, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, all of which have been recorded in accordance with the

economic substance of the transaction and appropriately classified and reported.

b. The fair value of investments.

c. Amounts of contractual obligations for construction and purchase of real propert or equipment not
included in the liabilties or encumbrances recorded on the books.



McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
June 9, 2010

Page 3

d. Debt issue provisions.

e. All signifcant estimates and matrial concentrtions known to management which are required to be

disclosed in accordance with the AICPA's Statement of Positon No. 94-6, Disclosure of Certain
Signifcant Risks and Uncertainties. Signifcant estimates are estmates at the balance sheet date
which could change materially wihin the next year. Concentratns refer to volumes of busines,
revenue, available sourcs of supply, or markets for which events could occur which would

signifcantly disrupt normal finances wihin the next year.

1. The effec on the financial statements of GASB Sttement Nos. 51 and 53, which have been issued,

but which we have not yet adopted.

g. Deposits and investment securies category of custodial credit risk.

h. Restrictions of cah and investments.

i. Arite rebate liabilities.

j. Asets and liabilities measured at fair vaue.

k. Risk financing actvities.

15. We are responsible for making the accounting esmates included in the financial statements. Those
estimates reflect our judgment based on our knowledge and experience about past and current events and
our assumptions about conditions we expect to exist and courses of action we expect to take. In that regard,
adequate provisions have been made:

a. To reduce receivables to their estimated net collectable amounts.

b. To reduce obsolete, damaged, or excess inventories to their estimated net realizable values.

c, For risk retention, including uninsured losses or loss retentions (deductibles) attributable to events

ocurrng through December 31 , 2009 and/or for expected retroactive insurance premium
adjustments applicable to periods through December 31, 2009.

d. For pension obligations, post-retirement benefits other than pensions, and deferred compensation

agreements atbutable to employee services rendered through December 31,2009.

16. There are no:

a. Material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting recrds underlying the

financial statements.

b. Violations or pOSSible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be considered for

disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency. In that regard, we
specifically represent that we have not been designated as, or alleged to be, a 'potentially responsible
party" by the Federal Environmental Protection Agency or any equivalent state agencies in
connection with any environmental contamination.



McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
June 9, 2010
Page 4

c. Other material liabilties or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by

Statement of Financial Accunting Standards NO.5 and/or GASB Statement No. 10.

d. Guarantees, whether wren or oral, under which Des Moines Water Works is contingently liable,

e. Arrangements with financial institions involving compensating balances.

f. Line of credit or similar arangements.

g. Agreements to repurchase assets previously sold.

h. Securi agreements in effect under the Uniform Commercial Code.

i. Liens or encumbrances on assets or revenues or any assets or revenues which were pledged as

collateral for any liabilit or which were subordinated in any way.

j. Uabilties which are subordinated in any way to any other actual or possible liabilites.

k. Debt issue repurchase optins or agreements, or sinking fund debt repurchase ordinance

requirements.

i. Leases or material amounts of rental obligations under long-term leases.

m. Authorized but unissued bonds and/or notes.

n. Derivative financial instruments.

o. Special and extaordinary items.

p. Impairment of capital assets,

q. Investments, intangibles or other assets which have permanently declined in value to their realizable

values.

r. Material loss to be sustained in the fulfllment of, or from the inability to fulfll, any service

commitments.

s. Material loss to be sustained as a result of purchase commitments.

1. Environmental cleanup obligations.

17. There are no unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised us are probable of assertion
and must be disclosed in accordance wih St~nt of Financial Accounting Standards NO.5 and/or GASS

Statement NO.10.

18. We have no direct or indirect, legal or moral, obligation for any debt of any organization, public or private,
that is not disclosed in the financial statement.

19. We have satisfactory title to all owned assets.



McGladrey & Pullen. LLP

June 9, 2010
Page 5

20. We have complied wi all aspect of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the
financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

21. Net asset components invested in capital assets, net of related debt; resticted and unrestricted are properly
classifed and. when applicable, approved.

22. Expenses have been appropriately classifed.

23. Revenues are appropriately classifed.

24. Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported and depreciated.

25. Required supplementary informatin is properly measured and prented.

26. We are responsible for and have reviewed and approved the proposed adjustments to the tral balances
idented during the audit, which are included in the summarized schedule of posted adjustments and will

post all adjustments accordingly. These adjustments are attched. We have reviewed, approved, and are
responsible for overeeing the preparation and completion of the basic financial statements and related
notes.

27. The adoption of GASB 52 is appropriate. Statement No. 52 had no effect on the financial statements.

28. In connection wi your audit, conducted in accordance wih Government Auditng Standards, we confirm:

a. We are responsible for:

i. Compliance with the laws, regulations and provisions of contract and grant agreements

applicable to Des Moines Water Works.

ii. Establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.

b. We have identified and disclosed to you:

i. All laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that have a direct and

material effect on the determinations of financial statement amounts or other financial data
significant to audit objectves.

ii. Violations (and possible violations) of laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant

agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the auditor's report on
noncompliance.

c. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendatìons.

d, We have identified for you previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance of audits,
or other studies related to the objectives of the audit being undertken and the corrective action taken
to address significant findings and recommendations.

e. We have reviewed, approved. and take full responsibility for all accrual adjustments and an
acknowledgement of the auditor's role in the preparation of the adjustments.



McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
June 9.2010
Page 6

No events or transactions have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date that would require adjustment to, or
disclosure in, the financial sttements.

During the course of your audit, you may have accmulated records containing data which should be reflected in our
books and records. All such dat have been so refleced. Accrdingly, copies of such records in your possession are

no longer needed by us.

Des Moines Water Works

Randy eavers
Chief Executive Ofcer~
Peggy Freese
Director of Finance

~~
Controller
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DES MOINES WATER WORKS

Board of Water Works Trustees

2201 George Flagg Parkay i Des Moines, Iowa 50321-1190

Des Moines

Water W'rks
..

Water You Can Trust for Life
I (515) 283-8700 i ww.dmww.com

June 9,2010

McGladrey & Pullen. LLP
201 Nort Harrison Stret
Suite 300
Davenport. Iowa 52801

In connecion with your audit of the statements of cash receipts and disbursements of Board of Water Works
Trustees, Billng and Collection Agent for the Sewer Service. Solid Waste Collection and Storm Water Management
Charges for the City of Des Moines, Iowa as of and for the years ended Decmber 31, 2009 and 2008, we confrm
that we are responsible for the fair presentation in the financial statements of cash recipts and disbursements in
conformity with cash basis accounting.

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief. as of June 9,2010 the following representations made to you
during your audits:

1. The financial statements referr to above are fairl presented in conformit with the basis of cash receipts

and disbursments which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

2. We are responsible for compliance with the contractual agreement with the Cit of Des Moines, Iowa.

3, We have made available to you all financial recrds and related data in existence at any time during the
period covered by your audit.

4. We have no knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving:

a. Management or employees who have significant roles in the internal control.

b. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements,

5. We acknowledge our responsibilit for the design and implementation of programs and controls to provide
reasonable assurance that fraud is prevented and detected.

6. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting Des Moines Water Works
received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, short sellers or
others.

7. We are aware of no signifcant deficiencies, including material weaknesses, in the design or operation of
internal controls that could adversely affect the entit's ability to record, process, summarie and report
financial data.



McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
June 9, 2010
Page 2

8. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or

deficiencies in, financial reportng pratices.

9. There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records

underlying th financial statements.

10, We have complied with all aspects of contractal agreements that would have a material effect on the
financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

No events or trnsactions have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date that would require adjustment to, or
disclosure in, the financial statements.

During the cours of your audit, you may have accumulated reords containing data which should be reflected in
our books and records. All such data have been so reflected. Accordingly, copies of such reords in your possession
are no longer needed by us.

Des Moines Water Works

Q
Randy Bars
Chief Executve Ofcer~
Peggy Frees

Direcor of Financet7~ ~
Michelle Holland

Controller
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McGladrey & Pullen
cerified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Water Works Trustees
Des Moines Water Works
Des Moines, Iowa

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of Des Moines Water Works (Water Works) as of and
for the years ended December 31,2009 and 2008, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Des Moines Water Works' management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Des Moines Water Works as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

The Managements Discussion and Analysis on pages 2 through 8, other postemployment benefit plan schedule on
page 36 and pension plan schedules on pages 37 through 39 are not a required part of the basic financial statements
but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

//~//~/ L¿,P
Davenport, Iowa

June 9, 2010

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is a member firm of RsM Intemational-
an affliation of separate and independent legal entiies.
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Des Moines Water Works

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended December 31,2009

Our Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of Des Moines Water Works' (Water Works) financial
performance provides an overview of the utility's financial activities for the years ended Deæmber 31,2009 and
2008. Please consider this information in conjunction with the financial statements and the accompanying notes to
basic financial statements that follow this section.

Overview of Business

The service area of the Water Works has expanded significantly since its emergence as a public water utility in 1919.
In addition to serving customers within the City of Des Moines, Water Works provides wholesale water service based
on long-term water contracts to surrounding municipalities and rural water districts, accounting for roughly 25 percent
of total water revenues. This service area spans approximately 400 square miles, including most of Polk County and
communities in eastern Dallas County and northern Warren County. The utilty also provides biling and collection
services on a contractual basis to wholesale customers and biling and collection services to the City of Des Moines
for wastewater treatment, solid waste collection and the storm water utility.

As the utility's service area has expanded, so too has the need for water storage facilities, booster stations and
additional treatment capacity to meet peak demand requirements. The most economical approach for the Water
Works has involved utilizing these facilities to supply multiple customers. Contractual service users share in the cost
of these joint-use facilities, which allows for meeting peak use demands and also allows some users to participate in
lower off-peak or purchased capacity water rates. Financial participation in the construction of these faciliies includes
initial cash contributions or payments of debt service for the improvements and annual payment of operating and
maintenance costs. Ownership of these facilities is maintained by the Water Works.

The water sources for the system are the Raccoon River, the Des Moines River, an underground infiltration gallery
and wells along the Raccoon River near Mafftt Reservoir. These four sources are used to provide adequate supply in
the most cost-effective combination. The utility operates two treatment plants, with one of those plants being
operated remotely. An additional treatment plant is currently being developed in the northern segment of the utility's
service area to meet growing demand in that area.

Governance of the Water Works is vested in a five-member Board appointed by the Mayor of the City of Des Moines
with the approval of the City CounciL. Trustees serve for six-year staggered terms. The Board has complete control of
Water Works' management and employs approximately 205 full-time and 12 part-time or seasonal employees.

The utility has adopted an annual activity-based budgeting methodology and performs an annual cost of service
study to assist the Board in rate-setting policy.

Financial Highlights

. Water Works' net assets increased as a result of operations. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, total assets
were $295,960,262 and $290,270,404, respectively; total liabilities were $92,887,996 and $98,847,959,
respectively, resulting in net assets of $203,072,266 and $191 ,422,44~, respectively.

. In 2009, operating revenues of $41,113,730 increased 6.88 percent over 2008, while operating expenses in

2009 increased 3.04 percent to $36,009,411. Operating revenues of $38,468,025 in 2008 decreased less
than one percent from 2007, while operating expenses increased approximately 3.06 percent to $34,946,376.

. During the year, Water Works had operating income of $5,104,319 and change in net assets of $11,649,821.

This compares to operating income of $3,521 ,649 and change in net assets of $4,752,681 reported in 2008.

2
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Des Moines Water Works

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended December 31,2009

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the financial statements, and the MD&A
represents management's examination and analysis of the Water Work's financial condition and performance. The
financial statements report information about the utilty using full accrual accounting methods as utilzed by similar
entities in the private sector.

The balance sheet provides information about the Water Works' assets, liabilities and net assets, thereby measuring
the Water Works' liquidity and solvency. Liquidity is a measure of the utility's ability to meet current obligations (those
due within one year). Solvency is a similar concept, but measures the ongoing abilty to meet obligations over a
longer term.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets presents the results of the Water Works' revenues
and expenses over the course of the fiscal year and provides information about the utility's recovery of costs. Water
rates are established by the Board of Trustees and are based on the utiity's annual Cost of Service Study. The Cost
of Service Study estimates annual revenue requirements through an analysis of operational and maintenance
expenses, debt service requirements, anticipated capital needs and return on capitaL. The Study provides a core of
information not only for the trustees and staff at Des Moines Water Works, but also for the customers ultimately
affected by our decisions.

The statement of cash flows presents cash receipts, cash disbursements and net changes in cash resulting from
operations, noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing and investing activities. This statement details
where cash resources come from and how they are used.

The notes to basic financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that are essential to a full
understanding of data provided in the statements. The notes supplement the basic financial statements by presenting
information about the Water Works' accounting policies, significant account balances and activities, material risks,
obligations, commitments and contingencies.

Condensed Financial Information

The following condensed financial information serves as key financial data and indicators for management,
monitoring and planning.
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. Des Moines Water Works

.
Management's Discussion and Analysis

, Year Ended December 31,2009

.

. Condensed Balance Sheet Information

. % Change % Change

2009 2008 2007 2008 to 2009 2007 to 2008

. Current assets $ 21,672,708 $ 24,660,081 $ 26,902,959 (12.11)% (8.34)%

. Capital assets, net 252,246,879 241,322,908 233,569,476 4.53 3.32

.
Other noncurrent assets 22,040,675 24,287,415 29,634,514 (9.25) (18.04)

Total assets 295,960,262 290,270,404 290,106,949 1.96 0.06

. Current liabilities 14,1 l 9,218 15,769,454 16,187,541 (10.46) (2.58)

, Other noncurrent liabilities 16,218,778 16,488,505 16,747,644 (1.64) (1.55)
Long-term debt 62,550,000 66,590,000 70,502,000 (6.07) (5.55)

, Total liabilties 92,887,996 98,847,959 103,437,185 (6.03) (4.44)

. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 189,377,017 179,918,504 178,663,763 5.26 0.70
Restricted 23,751,056 25,988,574 24,849,822 (8.61) 4.58

, Unrestricted (10,055,807) (14,484,633) (16,843,821 ) (30.58) (14.01)

. Total net assets $ 203.072266 $ 191,422.445 $ 186.669,764 6.09 2.55

. Condensed Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

, % Change % Change

2009 2008 2007 2008 to 2009 2007 to 2008
.

Water sales $ 35,224,878 $ 32,870,245 $ 32,649,976 7.16% 0.67%

, Billng and collection services 1,009,751 923,930 991,68 9.29 (6.83)

. Connection fees 425,167 478,954 725,359 (11.23) (33.97)
Purchased capacity 1,311,808 1,335,264 1,330,631 (1.76) 0.35

. Other sales and services 3,142,126 2,859,632 2,893,530 9.88 (1.17)

.
Total operating revenues 41,113,730 38,468,025 38,591,144 6.88 (0.32)

.
Investment income 551,818 1,564,931 2,943,034 (64.74) (46.83)
Other 192,072 175,862 179,154 9.22 (1.84)

t Capital contributions 6,466,848 1,326,051 630,155 387.68 70.17

Total revenues 48,324,468 41,534,869 42,343,487 16.35 (1.91)
.

Labor and benefits 15,510,531 14,999,615 13,523,064 3.41 10.92

, Chemicals and power 5,987,666 5,791,656 5,356,622 3.38 8.12

, Corporate Insurance 938,496 864,285 965,607 8.59 (10.49)
Purchased services 3,740,493 3,661,378 3,346,776 2.16 9.40

, Materials, supplies and equipment 2,959,322 3,021,496 3,155,726 (2.06) (4.25)

,
Depreciation 6,449,683 6,271,439 7,242,073 2.84 (13.40)
Other 423,220 336,507 318,871 25.77 5.53

~ Total operating expenses 36,009,411 34,946,376 33,908,739 3.04 3.06

~
Interest expense 606,254 1,835,812 2,660,093 (66.98) (30.99)
Gain/loss on sale of fixed assets 58,982 100.00

~ Total expenses 36,674,647 36,782,188 36,568,832 (0.29) 0.58

t Change in net assets 11,649,821 4,752,681 5,774,655 145.12 (17.70)

~ Net assets, beginning of year 191,422,445 186,669,764 180,895,109 2.55 3.19

t
Net assets, end of year $ 203,072,266 $ 191 ,422,445 $ 186,669,764 6.09 2.55

t

~

.

~

I
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Des Moines Water Works

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended December 31,2009

Financial Analysis

Year ended December 31 , 2009: Current assets decreased 12.11 percent. Other noncurrent assets decreased
approximately 9.25 percent. Both of these are as a result of spending bond proceeds on the development of the
additional treatment plant and a tower and booster station on the east side of the service area. Offsetting these
decreases is an increase of capital assets by 4.53 percent. Overall, total assets as of December 31,2009 are
approximately $5,690,000 more than December 31, 2008.

Current liabilities decreased 10.46 percent. Construction payables decreased by $2,193,153 due primarily to
payables related to the 1-235 project with the Iowa Department of Transportation being written down by $2.6 millon.
Offsetting this is an increase in deferred revenue of $360,000 which is attributable to FEMA money received for flood
damages on projects that wil occur in 2010.

Noncurrent liabilities include deferred revenue being amortized over a period of 10 to 20 years, the pension liability
which wil be paid through future pension contributions, and the liability for other postretirement benefis which is a
GASB standard implemented in 2008. This shows the actuarial liability for providing health care benefits to retirees of
Des Moines Water Works. Additionally, noncurrent liabilities include arbitrage payable on the 2006 bonds of

$390,000.

Long-term debt decreased 6.07 percent in 2009 due to the scheduled payment of the principal and the
reclassification of $4,040,000 of the scheduled 2010 debt service payments to short-term liabilties.

Water sales increased 7.16 percent. The increase is attributed to a rate increase effective May 1 st for most service
areas. Pumpage was relatively flat compared to the prior year.

Revenue for billing and collection services increased by 9.29 percent. This is due to new rates being in effect on July
1st for the billing and collecting services done for the City of Des Moines.

Connection fees decreased 11.23 percent or $54,000. These fees can fluctuate widely from year to year depending
on the level of development experienced within the utility's service areas.

Purchased capacity revenues decreased 1.76 percent. This represents the continued amortization of deferred
revenue. This deferred revenue represents cash contributions to fund the new water treatment plant under
construction and previous years' cash contributions from wholesale customers to fund the L.D. McMullen Water
Treatment Facility. Financial participation in the construction of the plants allows users to participate in lower
purchased capacity water rates. Deferred revenue balances are amortized to purchase capacity revenue over the
length of the contract, generally 10 to 20 years.

Revenue from other sales and services increased by 9.88 percent. Included in this line are numerous revenue items
in the utility including reconnect fees, stop box repairs, distribution system repairs, lab testing, Botanical Center
revenue, etc.

Effective January 5, 2004, per 28E agreement with the City of Des Moines, Des Moines Water Works assumed
management of operations of the Des Moines Botanical Center. Operations include room rentals, catering and café,
gift shop and special events. Botanical Center revenues of $679,085 and $688,367 for 2009 and 2008, respectively,
are included in Water Works' financial results.

5
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Des Moines Water Works

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended December 31,2009

Labor and benefis increased 3.41 percent which is primarily due to wage rate increases. An increase in health
insurance costs and pension funding expense is offset by lower expenses related to the liabilty for other
postemployment benefits. Des Moines Water Works implemented this GASB standard in 2008.

Chemicals and power increased 3.38 percent due to an increase in chemical costs of approximately 12 percent offset
by a decrease in power costs of 9 percent.

Corporate insurance increased by 8.59 percent due to higher premiums.

Purchased services increased 2.16 percent compared to 2008. The removal of residuals at the McMullen Treatment
Plant accounted for $239,000 in additional expenses. This is due to the beginning of this removal process beginning
late in 2008.

Other expenses increased 25.77 due to increased casualty losses of $75,000. Some of the losses have offsetting
revenue from insurance proceeds. Bad debt expense was also higher by $30,000 in 2009. This fluctuates from year
to year and 2008 was a year with lower bad debt expense.

Investment income decreased 64.74 percent due to lower investment balances due to spending of the bond
proceeds on the new treatment plant and the eastside project consisting of a tower, booster station and feeder main.

Interest expense decreased 66.98 percent in 2009 primarily due to the capitalization of interest expense for the new
treatment plant and the eastside project. .

Capital contributions increased 480.67 percent or $5.1 milion dollars. This is due to contracts payable attributable to
the 1-235 project in the amount of approximately $2.6 million being written down. Additionally, funds were received
from Altoona in the amount of $2 million for their share of the joint eastside project and from Pleasant Hill in the
amount of $900,000 for capital infrastructure. There were no contributions of water mains from subdividers. These
contributions can fluctuate widely from year to year, depending on the status of construction and the timing of
inspections performed by Water Works' staff.

The aforementioned fluctuations result in an overall increase in net assets of 6.09 percent, the result of a 6.88
percent increase in operating revenues, an increase in operating expenses of 3.04 percent and a 135.12 percent
increase in nonoperating revenues.

Year ended December 31,2008: Current assets decreased 8.34 percent. Other noncurrent assets decreased
approximately 18.04 percent. Both of these are a result of spending bond proceeds on the development of the
additional treatment plant. Offsetting these decreases is an increase of capital assets by 3.32 percent. Overall, total
assets as of December 31,2008 are approximately $163,000 less than December 31,2007.

Current liabilities decreased 2.58 percent. Accounts payable decreased $866,050 and fees collected for other entities
also decreased by $293,756. Both of these can be attributed to year-end timing. Offsetting this is the current portion
of long-term debt that increased $134,000 and the compensated absences (leave accruals) that increased $208,071.

Noncurrent liabilities include deferred revenue being amortized over a period of 10 to 20 years. Noncurrent liabilities
also include the pension liability which will be paid through future pension contributions and the liability for other
postretirement benefits which is a GASB standard implemented in 2008. This shows the actuarial liability for

providing health care benefis to retirees of Des Moines Water Works.

co



Des Moines Water Works

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended December 31,2009

Long-term debt decreased 5.55 percent in 2008 due to the $3,912,000 reclassification of the scheduled 2009 debt
service payments to short-term liabilties.

Water sales increased less than 1 percent. A rate increase effective May 1st for most service areas was offset by
lower pumpage due to a very wet summer. Debt service reimbursement decreased $0.5 milion.

Connection fees decreased 33.97 percent. These fees can fluctuate widely from year to year depending on the level
of development experienced within the utility's service areas.

Purchased capacity revenues increased less than 1 percent. This represents the continued amortization of deferred
revenue. This deferred revenue represents cash contributions to fund the new water treatment plant under
construction and previous years' cash contributions from wholesale customers to fund the L.D. McMullen Water
Treatment Facility. Financial participation in the construction of the plants allows users to participate in lower
purchased capacity water rates. Deferred revenue balances are amortized to purchase capacity revenue over the
length of the contract, generally 10 to 20 years.

Effective January 5, 2004, per 28E agreement with the City of Des Moines, Des Moines Water Works assumed
management of operations of the Des Moines Botanical Center. Operations include room rentals, catering and café,
gift shop and special events. Botanical Center revenues of $688,367 and $748,813 for 2008 and 2007, respectively,
are included in Water Works' financial results.

Labor and benefis increased 10.92 percent which is primarily due the recognition of a liabilty and the resulting
expense related to other postemployment benefis of $1 ,324,347. This is a new GASB standard which was
implemented in 2008. Additionally, wage rate increases were offset by a slight headcount reduction.

Chemicals and power increased 8.12 percent due to an increase in chemical costs.

Corporate insurance decreased by 10.49 percent due to lower premiums.

Purchased services increased 9.40 percent compared to 2007 due to increased services performed for stop box
repairs. There is an offsetting revenue increase. Additionally, services performed for damages due to summer
flooding were approximately $200,000. Most of this expense is reimbursable by FEMA and the offsetting revenue is
shown in the Non-operating revenue section.

Depreciation expense decreased 13.40 percent due to the utility's customer relationship management system (CRM)
becoming fully depreciated in 2007.

Other expenses increased 5.53 percent or approximately $18,000.

Investment income decreased 46.83 percent due to lower investment balances due to spending on the new
treatment plant and the eastside project consisting of a tower, booster station ánd feeder main. Additionally, interest
rates were lower in 2008.

Interest expense decreased 30.99 percent in 2008 primarily due to the capitalization of interest expense for the new
treatment plant and the eastside project.

7
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Des Moines Water Works

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended December 31,2009

Capital contributions increased 70.17 percent due to funds received in 2008 from Ankeny for construction of water
mains and connection. Ankeny agreed to share in the cost of these assets. In 2008, funds received included

$772,350 from Ankeny and $300,000 from Pleasant Hill for capital infrastructure. There were no contributions of
water mains from subdividers. These contributions can fluctuate widely from year to year, depending on the status of
construction and the timing of inspections performed by Water Works' staff.

The aforementioned fluctuations result in an overall increase in net assets of 2.55 percent, the result of a 0.32
percent decrease in operating revenues, an increase in operating expenses of 3.06 percent and an 18.27 percent
decrease in nonoperating revenues.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

During 2009, net capital assets increased $10,923,972 or 4.53 percent. In addition to replacing deteriorating water
mains, the utility is building a water treatment plant in the northern part of the service area and an elevated tower,
booster station and feeder mains on the east side of the service area. There were no significant changes to the
condition of infrastructure assets, nor were there any changes made to standard service lives of those assets.

Water Works' long-term debt was $66,590,000 and $70,502,000 as of December 31,2009 and 2008, respectively.
The decrease is due to scheduled principal payments.

During 2008, net capital assets increased $7,753,432 or 3.32 percent. In addition to replacing deteriorating water
mains, the utilty is building a water treatment plant in the northern part of the service area and an elevated tower,
booster station and feeder mains on the eastside of the service area. There were no significant changes to the
condition of infrastructure assets, nor were there any changes made to standard service lives of those assets.

Water Works' long-term debt was $70,502,000 and $74,280,000 as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
The decrease is due to scheduled principal payments.

Economic Factors

Due to the Water Works' large concentration of residential customers, weather impacts revenue to a greater degree
than do economic cycles. Water Works budgets revenues and expenses based on anticipated consumption for a
"normal" weather year. Included in the 2010 budget is an increase in water availabilty charges and an increase in
water rates for industrial, commercial and wholesale customers. This was based on the results of the annual cost of
service study which indicated costs to serve those customers exceeded their water rates and availability charges.

Requests for Information

If the reader has questions or would like additional information, please direct the request to: Peggy Freese,
Treasurer, 2201 George Flagg Parkway, Des Moines, Iowa 50321-1190.
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Des Moines Water Works ..Balance Sheets .December 31, 2009 and 2008 ..

2009 2008
.

Assets .
Current assets: .

Cash (Note 2)
$ 3,190,773 $ 2,222,319 .Restricted assets (Note 2): .Cash

6,398,748 5,617,822
Investments, water revenue bond reserve fund 4,355,204 9,792,072 .

Accounts receivable: .Billed
3,672,560 3,071,519 .Unbiled 1,130,710 1,134,231

Other receivables
558,507 563,829 .

Inventory, materials and supplies
1,591,892 1,490,571 .Prepaid expenses

774,314 767,718 .Total current assets 21,672,708 24,660,081 .
Restricted assets, investments (Notes 2 and 4): .Water revenue bond reserve fund

15,870,038 18,803,427 ..Water revenue bond improvement fund
600,000 600,000 ..16,470,038 19,403,427 ..Long-term investments: ..Investment in land
624,562 624,562 ..Board designated funds, investments (Note 2) 4,072,764 3,487,624

4,697,326 4,112,186 ....Capital assets (Note 3): ..Land
4,890,351 4,911,351

Construction-in-progress
48,420,080 36,617,178

Buildings, equipment and machinery
121,154,478 120,073,217

Supply system
43,588,579 43,078,877

Distribution system
152,479,887 148,661,138
370,533,375 353,341,761

Accumulated depreciation
( 118,286,496) (112,018,853)

Capital assets, net 252,246,879 241,322,908

Bond issue costs and discounts:

Bond issue costs
192,643 218,527

Bond issue discounts
247,204 272,849

Bond issue costs and discounts 439,847 491,376

Other assets
433,464 280,426

Total assets
$ 295,960,262 $ 290,270,404

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
9
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2009 2008

Liabilties and Net Assets
. Current liabilities:

. Accounts payable $ 1 ,274,303 $ 1,402,364

, Accrued wages and benefits 484,752 427,631

,
Compensated absences (Note 4) 1 ,564,166 1,534,324

Deferred revenue (Note 1) 1,671,812 1,311,808

. Special deposits 354,898 208,843

. Construction payables 4,269,498 6,462,651

.
Water revenue bonds interest payable 221,526 248,225

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 4) 4,040,000 3,912,000

, Fees collected for other entities 238,263 261,608

. Total current liabilties 14,119,218 15,769,454

.

.

.

.

. Noncurrent liabilities:

. Long-term debt, less current installments (Note 4) 62,550,000 66,590,000

. Compensated absences (Note 4) 601,179 614,547

Deferred revenue (Note 1) 13,155,755 14,432,048

. Pension liabilty (Note 5) 111,912 117,563

, Other postemployment benefits liabilty (Note 6) 1,959,932 1,324,347

. Other noncurrent liabilities, arbitrage 390,000
Total noncurrent liabilties 78,768,778 83,078,505

.

. T otalliabilties 92,887,996 98,847,959

.

.

.

.

. Net assets:

. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 189,377,017 179,918,504

. Restricted (bond indentures) 23,751,056 25,988,574

.
Unrestricted (10,055,807) (14,484,633)

Total net assets 203,072,266 191,422,445

.

. Total liabilties and net assets $ 295,960,262 $ 290,270,404

.

.
10
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It Des Moines Water Works

It

. Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

It
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

.

.

. 2009 2008

Operating revenues:. Water sales $ 36,536,686 $ 34,205,509

It Other sales and services 4,151,877 3,783,562

It
Connection fees 425,167 478,954

It
Total operating revenues 41,113,730 38,468,025

. Operating expenses:

. Labor $ 11,105,697 10,556,380

. Group insurance 1,710,006 1,597,243
Retirement benefits (including social security) 2,694,828 2,845,992. Purchased services 3,740,493 3,661,378

. Corporate insurance 938,496 864,285

. Materials, supplies and equipment 2,959,322 3,021,496
Chemicals 3,818,508 3,405,635. Utilties 2,169,158 2,386,021

. Depreciation 6,449,683 6,271,439

. Other 423,220 336,507
Total operating expenses 36,009,411 34,946,376

.

. Operating income 5,104,319 3,521,649

. Nonoperating revenue (expense):

. Investment income 551,818 1,564,931

. Interest expense (606,254) (1,835,812)

. Land use income 187,693 171,434
Loss on sale of fixed assets (58,982). Other 4,379 4,428

. Nonoperating revenue, net 78,654 (95,019)

. Income before contributions 5,182,973 3,426,630.

. Capital contributions 6,466,848 1,326,051

.
Change in net assets 11,649,821 4,752,681

.

. Net assets, beginning of year 191 ,422,445 186,669,764

. Net assets, end of year $ 203,072,266 $ 191,422,445

. See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

.

.

.
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.... Des Moines Water Works.. Statements of Cash Flows

. Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

.

.

.. 2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
.. Cash received from customers $ 39,740,345 $ 37,153,568

.. Cash paid to suppliers (14,285,176) (14,692,933)

.. Cash paid to employees and for payroll taxes (14,807,002) (13,636.789)

..
Net cash provided by operating actívities 10,648,167 8,823,846

. Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

. Principal payments on long-term debt (3,912,000) (3,778,000)

. Acquisition, construction and removal cost of capital assets (14,877,244) (12,742,057)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 150,000. Contributions received 3,885,847 1,072,350

. Interest paid (2,771,418) (2,903,737)

. Net cash (used in) capital and related
financing activities ( 17,524,815) (18,351.444).

. Cash flows from investing activities:

. Proceeds from maturities of investments 56,309,083 102.761.402
Purchase of investments (48,523,966) (95,119,006). Interest received 648,839 1,663,941

. Land use income and other 192,072 175,862

. Net cash provided by investing activities 8,626,028 9.482,199

. Net increase (decrease) in cash 1,749,380 (45,399).

. Cash, beginning of year 7,840,141 7,885,540
Cash, end of year $ 9,589,521 $ 7,840,141.

. Reconciliation of cash to the balance sheet:

. Cash $ 3,190,773 $ 2,222,319
Restricted assets, cash 6,398,748 5,617,822. Total cash at end of year $ 9,589,521 $ 7,840,141

.
, (Continued)

,
,
,
,
.
.
,
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Des Moines Water Works

Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

Years Ended December 31,2009 and 2008

3:3

Reconcilation of operating income to net cash provided by operating

activities:

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash, depreciation
Change in:

Accounts receivable, billed

Accounts receivable, unbiled
Other receivables
Inventories - materials and supplies

Prepaid expense

Other assets

Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits and compensated absences

Pension liability

Other postemployment benefi liabilty

Deferred revenue
Special deposits

Fees collected for other entities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Schedule of noncash capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition of capital assets through construction payables

Capitalized interest

Increase in other receivables for sale of capital assets

Capital contributions through relief of construction payables forgiveness

Trade-in value towards assets purchased

Schedule of noncash investing activities, net depreciation of the fair value

of investments

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

13

2009 2008

$ 5,104,319 $ 3,521,649
6,449,683 6,271,439

(645,026) 365,595
3,521 (55,027)

(91,699) (80,937)
(101,321) ( 176,999)

(6,596) 25,438
153,397 (75,402)

(128,061) (866,050)
73,595 309,320

(5,651) (270,841)
635,585 1,324,347

(916,289) (1,314,263)
146,055 139,333

(23,345) (293,756)
$ 10,648,167 $ 8,823,846

$ (431,833) $ (171,821)
2,579,994 1,110,993

250,000

2,624,986

56,435

270 153,072
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Des Moines Water Works
Pension Plan

Statements of Plan Net Assets
December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
Assets
Investments, contracts with insurance companies, pooled

separate accounts

Employer contributions receivable
$ 33,688,688 $ 29,201,656

33,688,688 29,201,656
Liabilties

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits $ 33,688,688 $ 29,201,656

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Des Moines Water Works
Pension Plan

Statements of Changes in Plan Net Assets
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
Additions:

Investment income (loss):

Net appreciation (depreciation) in the fair value of pooled separate

accounts, interest and dividends (Note 2)

Employer contributions

Total additions

$ 5,450,308 $

1,023,319

6,473,627

(13,716,994)
800,000

(12,916,994)

Deductions:

Benefit payments

Administrative expenses

Total deductions

1,924,856

61,739

1,986,595

1,820,833

70,596

1,891,429

Net increase (decrease) 4,487,032

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits:

Beginning of year

End of year
$

29,201,656

33,688,688 $

44,010,079

29,201 ,656

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business, Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of business:

Des Moines Water Works (Water Works) is managed and controlled by the Board of Water Works Trustees of the
City of Des Moines, Iowa (the Board), which exists under the provisions of Chapter 388 and other relevant statutes
of the Code of Iowa. The five-member Board is appointed by the Mayor of Des Moines with the approval of the
City CounciL. Trustees serve for six-year staggered terms.

Water Works is exempt from federal income tax pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 115 which provides
for exemption of divisions of state and local govemments.

Water Works provides water and other services to retail and wholesale customers in the City of Des Moines (the
City) and surrounding communities.

In September 1993, the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 20, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting. The Statement provides that Water Works should apply all GASB pronouncements, as well as the
following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements: Statements and Interpretations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board

(FASB), Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB) of the Committee
on Accounting Procedures. In addition, Water Works may also apply all FASB Statements and Interpretations
issued after November 30, 1989, except for those that conflct with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Water
Works has elected to not apply all FASB, APB and ARB materials issued after November 30,1989.

Reporting entity:

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the reporting entity include

(1) the primary government, (2) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable and
(3) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The
Water Works has authority to issue bonded debt without the approval of another government. It has the right to
sue and be sued, and has the right to buy, sell, lease or mortgage propert in its own name. Based on these
criteria, the Water Works is considered a primary government and there are no other organizations or agencies
whose financial statements should be combined and presented with these financial statements.

Significant accounting policies:

Basis of accountinq and measurement focus: The economic measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting are used by the Water Works. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when the liabilty has been incurred. Under this basis of accounting, all
assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the Water Works are included in the balance sheet.

Accountinq estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business, Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and investments: For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, Water Works considers cash balances
maintained in demand deposit accounts at financial institutions to be cash. Excess cash invested temporarily in
financial institutions is considered an investing activity and is not considered to be cash.

Investments as of December 31,2009 were in U.S. government or agency obligations and are stated at fair value,
based on quoted market prices.

Revenue recoqnition: Customers served by Water Works are billed on a monthly cyclical basis based on usage.
Water Works accrues estimated unbiled water revenues for services rendered from the last billng date through
year-end.

Operatinq revenues and expenses: Operating revenues include revenues resulting from the sale of water and
related services. Operating expenses include expenses for water treatment, distribution, depreciation, customer
service and sales, administrative and general. Nonoperating revenues and expenses include those derived from
capital and related financing activities, noncapital financing activities and investing activities. Revenues from the
sale of water are based on biling rates, which are applied to customer's consumption of water.

Transactions with the City of Des Moines: Water Works provides water service to the City without charge except
for the Sewage Treatment Works, Des Moines International Airport and City golf courses. The value (computed at
the commercial rate) of the service provided without charge was approximately $648,249 and $600,617 in 2009
and 2008, respectively.

Water Works has an agreement to pay the City a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT). This amount was calculated
in 1998 by applying the City milage rate for police and fire to the value of buildings and land operated and
controlled by Water Works located within the City at that time. Due to a change in methodology of computing the
amount, no payment was due in 2009. The total PILOT payment was $234,000 in 2008.

Water Works has also agreed to match annual contributions of the City (up to $50,000) toward an industrial
development corporation. Payments of $50,000 were made in 2009 and 2008.

Billinqs and collection aqent services: Water Works serves as the biling and collection agent for fees related to
sewage treatment, solid waste and storm water collection for certain political subdivisions (including the City).
Separate accounting records are maintained by Water Works for these collection services. Fees collected not yet
remitted by Water Works to the applicable entity totaled $238,263 and $261,608 as of December 31 J 2009 and
2008, respectively. These fees have been reflected in Water Works' balance sheet and were remitted to the City
and other political subdivisions subsequent to year-end. Processing fees billed to the City and other political
subdivisions for billing and collection services provided by Water Works totaled approximately $1,010,000 and

$924,000 in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The City's fees reflect only the incremental expenses incurred by Water
Works to bil and collect the City's charges, rather than an equal sharing of the costs. Water Works bears the total
cost of meter reading, cash processing and statement preparation and mailing.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market. The costs of these materials and
supplies are recorded as an expense at the time they are relieved from inventory for use.

Board desiqnated funds: These assets are reserves held for any contingencies.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business, Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Restricted assets. cash and investments: Water Works is required, under the water revenue bond resolutions, to
reserve certain assets to provide for payment of the bonds and interest for protection of the bondholders, and for
the improvement and extension of facilities. Disbursement of these assets is restricted by the purpose of the
respective funds.

Capital assets: Capital assets are recorded at cost and depreciated utilizing the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings, equipment and machinery

Supply system
Distribution system

3-85 years

20-85 years

1 0-85 years

Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor replacements are charged to operations. Expenditures for major
repairs and betterments are capitalized. Water Works' capitalization threshold is $500. When capital assets are
retired or otherwise disposed, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and
any resulting gains or losses are included in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets.
Included in capital assets are the interest capitalized during construction in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Capitalized interest was $2,579,994 and $1,110,993 in 2009
and 2008, respectively.

Net assets: Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the financial statements. Net
assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used for acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. As of
December 31,2009 and 2008, Water Works had unspent bond proceeds of $3,472,934 and $8,824,747,
respectively.

The Water Works' policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Rates: The Board has full authority to establish rates. As part of the rate-setting process, Water Works performs
an annual Cost of Service Study to determine the cost of operations. This Study is based on a standard water
industry modeL. Based upon the Study, rates are set to fund future operations. Costs related to operations and
maintenance, depreciation based on estimated replacement cost of capital assets (which differs from depreciation
expense recorded for financial reporting purposes), debt service and return on capital are factored into the rate
design as well as demand factors from various customer classes.

Deferred revenue: During 1996 and years subsequent, Water Works entered into contractual agreements with
other political subdivisions to sell treatment capacity to these entities. In exchange for purchasing these amounts
of capacity, the political subdivisions wil be able to purchase water at a lower wholesale water rate. Purchasers
were offered the option of cash payment or participating in issues of water revenue bonds. For entities choosing to
pay cash in advance, Water Works records these amounts as deferred revenue and amortizes the amounts into
income over periods of 10 to 20 years. For entities participating in the bond issues, Water Works recognizes this
revenue on a monthly basis as the entities are biled and as the principal and interest payments become due on
the bonds. As of December 31,2009, Water Works has $14,432,048 of deferred revenue relating to contractual
agreements and has recognized $1,311,808 of revenue during 2009. As of December 31,2008, Water Works has

$15,743,856 of deferred revenue and has recognized $1,314,263 of revenue during 2008.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business, Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Water Works received funds from FEMA for reimbursement for flooding damages that occurred in 2008. Water
Works recognizes this revenue once it has been earned; that is, when expenses have been incurred. As of
December 31, 2009, Water Works has $395,519 of deferred revenue relating to unearned FEMA funds.

Compensated absences: Vacation and personal leave are accrued as a liability as it is earned. Sick leave benefits
do not vest; however, upon retirement, an employee may receive pay for 90 percent of his or her accumulated sick
leave up to a maximum of 810 hours. The maximum payable to employees who are eligible for retirement has
been recorded as a liability as well as an estimate for employees who are probable of becoming eligible in the
future.

Debt financinq costs and discounts: Costs incurred to issue water revenue bonds and the Water Revenue Capital
Loan notes are capitalized. These costs, and the discounts on the water revenue bonds, are amortized over the
terms of the bonds and note utilizing a method which approximates the effective interest method.

Fiduciary fund type: The Water Works also includes a pension trust fund, fiduciary fund type. Pension trust funds
are accounted for in essentially the same manner as the enterprise fund, using the same measurement focus and
basis of accounting. Plan member contnbutions are recognized in the period in which contributions are due.
Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to
provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the plan. The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the assets of the Des Moines Water Works Pension Plan.
This plan is included in the reporting entity due to the Water Works' significant administrative involvement and due
to the Board of the Plan consisting of the Water Works' Board members.

Reclassifications: Certain amounts in the 2008 financial statements have been reclassified with no effect on net
assets or change in net assets to conform with current year presentations.

Note 2. Cash and Investments

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk
Disclosures, requires state and local governments to disclose certain risks. The disclosures required by GASB
Statement No. 40 provide readers with information concerning the credit and interest risks associated with the Water
Works' deposits and investments.

Authorized investments: Water Works is authorized to invest in obligations of the US government, its agencies and
instrumentalities; certificates of deposit at federally insured Iowa depository institutions approved by the Code of
Iowa, Chapter 12C; and repurchase agreements if the underlying collateral consists of obligations of the US
government, its agencies and instrumentalities. The Water Works' investment policy prohibits investments in reverse
repurchase agreements and futures and options contracts. In addition, investing pursuant to the following investment
practices is prohibited: trading of securities for speculation of the realization of short-term trading gains; a contract
providing for the compensation of an agent or fiduciary based upon the performance of the invested assets; or if a
fiduciary or third part has failed to produce requested records within a reasonable time.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued)

Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. In an effort to limit exposure to fair value losses arising from interest rate risk, the
Water Works' investment policy places maturity limitations on both operating funds and nonoperating funds.
Operating funds are defined as those that are reasonably expected to be expended during the current budget year or
within 15 months. Operating funds may only be invested in authorized instruments that mature within 397 days.
Funds not identified as operating may be invested in investments with maturities longer than 397 days, but less than
1,726 days. All investments, however, shall have maturities that are consistent with the needs and uses of the utility.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair value of the Water Work's investments to market interest rate fluctuations
is provided by the tables below for December 31,2009 and 2008:

Type

Federal Home Loan Bank

Federal Home Loan

Mortgage Corp.

Federal National Mortgage

Assoc.

Federal Farm Credit Bank

Government National Mortgage

Assoc.

Type

Federal Home Loan Bank

Federal Home Loan

Mortgage Corp.

Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Corp. Discount Notes

Federal National Mortgage

Assoc.

Fair Value

December 31,

2009

Within 3

Months

Within 6

Months

Within 9

Months

Within 12

Months

Over 12

Months

$ 9,046,835 $ $ $509,063 $ $ 8,537,772

4,978,106 464,326 4,513,780

8,546,127

2,185,466

803,064 203,688 7,539,375

2,185,466

141,472

$ 24,898,006 464,326

141,472

$ 22,917,865$ 803,064 $ 712,751 $ $

Fair Value

December 31,

2008

Within 3

Months

Within 6

Months

Within 9

Months

Within 12

Months

Over 12

Months

$ 14,402,054 $ 4,513,474 $ 3,308,165 $ 2,061,405 $ 1,218,700 $ 3,300,310

9,526,134 2,687,601 2,546,810 1 ,496,482 2,795,241

903,728 449,955 453,773

7,851,207 2,777,586

$ 32,683,123 $ 10,428.616

1,793,591

$ 8.102,339

197,779

$ 3,755,666

723,641

$ 1 ,942,341

2,358,610

$ 8,54,161

The Water Works also has an investment in land purchased with the intent to sell; however, no commitment for sale
existed as of December 31,2009 and 2008. The land is recorded at the lower of cost or market at $624,562.

Credit risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued)

As of December 31,2009 and 2008, the Water Works' investments were rated as follows:

2009

Type S&P Rating Moody's Rating

Federal Home Loan Bank

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.

Federal National Mortgage Assoc.

Federal Farm Credit Bank

Government National Mortgage Assoc.

MA
MA
MA
MA
n/a

Aaa

Aaa
Aaa

Aaa

n/a

2008

Type S&P Rating Moody's Rating

Federal Home Loan Bank

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Discount Notes

Federal National Mortgage Assoc.

MA
MA
MA
MA

Aaa

Aaa

Aaa

Aaa

Concentration of credit risk: The policy defines diversification requirements for the Water Works' investments.
Invested assets shall be diversified to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a
specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific class of security. Portolio maturities shall be staggered in a way that
avoids undue concentration of assets in a specific maturity sector. Liquidity practices shall be followed to ensure that
funds required for the next disbursement date and next payroll date are covered through maturity investments,
marketable US Treasury bills or cash on hand. Risks of market price volatilty shall be controlled through maturity
diversification so that aggregate price losses on investments with maturities approaching one year shall not be
greater than coupon interest and investment income received from the balance of the portolio.

More than 5 percent of the utility's investments are in the following investments:

Type 2009 2008

Federal Home Loan Bank

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.

Federal National Mortgage Assoc.

Federal Farm Credit Bank

36.34%

19.99

34.32

8.78

44.07%

29.15
24.02

N/A

The Water Works' investments during the year did not vary substantially from those at year-end in amounts or level
or risk.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued)

Custodial credit risk: The custodial credit risk for deposits and investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
a depository financial institution or counterpart (for example, broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not
be able to recover deposits or wil not be able to recover collateral securities or value of investments that are in the
possession of an outside party. Deposits in financial institutions as of December 31,2009 and throughout the year
are covered by federal depository insurance or the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C, Code of
Iowa. This Chapter provides additional assessments against the depositories to ensure there is no loss of public
funds. Water Works' bank balances and book balances of deposits were $10,082,909 and $9,589,521 as of
December 31, 2009, respectively. Water Works' bank balances and book balances of deposits were $8,639,968 and

$7,840,141 as of December 31,2008, respectively. Water Works' investments were not exposed to custodial credit
risk as of December 31, 2009 or 2008.

Pension Plan Deposits and Investments

Deposits: As of December 31,2009 and 2008, the Plan held no deposits.

Investments: The Plan's investments in pooled separate accounts are stated at fair value based on quoted market
prices of the investments held in each account as determined by Principal Life Insurance Company (Principal).
Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade date basis. Dividends are recorded on the exdividend
date.

Asset allocation strateqy: The Des Moines Water Works Pension Plan's Named Fiduciary asset allocation strategy
shall identify target allocations to eligible asset classes and, where appropriate, suitable ranges within which each
asset class can fluctuate as a percent of the total fund. Each asset class is to remain suitably invested at all times in
either cash (or cash equivalents) or permitted securities within each class. The assets classes may be rebalanced
from time to time to take advantage of tactical misvaluations across major asset classes or investment styles, or to
align the current asset mix with strategic targets.

Authorized investments: The Des Moines Water Works Pension Plan's investment policy permits the Named
Fiduciary to consider all asset classes allowed by ERISA as acceptable investment options and to select one or more
customized investment portolios and retain an investment manager to manage the assets of each such portolio. The
following assets classes are permitted for Plan investment options: Stable Value, Domestic Fixed Income,
International or Foreign Fixed Income, Real Estate, Domestic Stock, International or Foreign Stock and
Balanced/Asset allocation.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 40 requires plan investments to disclose an indication of the level of credit risk, concentration of
credit risk and interest rate risk assumed by the Plan. These risk disclosures only pertin to fixed income
investments. As of December 31,2009 and 2008, the Plan had investments listed in the tables below. Amounts are
shown in dollars. Effective duration is shown in years. Investments held by the Plan were not subject to custodial
credit risk or foreign currency risk.

December 31 ,

2009
Fair Value

$ 5,312,246
4,910,186

2,176,926
1,825,392

1,215,919
15,440,669

18,248,019

$ 33,688,688

December 31,

2008
Fair Value

$ 1,046,321

7,404,213

1,776,307

1,499,981

398,825

1,777,291

13,902,938

15,298,718

$ 29,201,656

Fixed income investments:

Core Plus Bond Account

Principal Bond and Mortgage Account

Principal Inflation Protection Account

Principal High Yield Account

U.S. Propert Account
Total fair value of fixed income investments

Other investments, nonfixed income investments

Total investments

Fixed income investments:

Core Plus Bond Account

Principal Bond and Mortgage Account

Principal Inflation Protection Account

Principal High Yield Account

Principal Preferred Securities Account

U.S. Propert Account

Total fair value of fixed income investments
Other investments, nonfixed income investments

Total investments

Effective

Duration

4.55

4.76

7.30

3.96

N/A

Effective

Duration

2.58

3.72

5.69

5.69

5.63

N/A

Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates.

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not
fulfill its obligations to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistïcal rating organization. The pooled separate accounts held by the Plan are commingled pools,
rather than individual securities. As a result, these investments are not rated.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 3. Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31,2009 is as follows:

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 4,911,351 $ $ 21,000 $ 4,890,351
Construction-in-progress 36,617,178 17,819,904 6,017,002 48,420,080

Total capital assets not being

depreciated 41,528,529 17,819,904 6,038,002 53,310,431

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings, equipment and machinery 120,073,217 1,757,718 676,457 121,154,478
Supply system 43,078,877 509,702 43,588,579
Distribution system 148,661,138 3,818,749 152,479,887

Total capital assets being depreciated 311,813,232 6,086,169 676,457 317,222,944

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings, equipment and machinery 61,046,919 3,063,380 182,040 63,928,259
Supply system 12,841,040 751,708 13,592,748
Distribution system 38,130,894 2,634,595 40,765,489

Total accumulated depreciation 112,018,853 6,449,683 182,040 118,286,496

Total capital assets being depreciated,

net 199,794,379 (363,514) 494,417 198,936,448

Net capital assets $ 241,322,908 $ 17,456,390 $ 6,532,419 $ 252.246,879
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 3. Capital Assets (Continued)

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 is as follows:

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 4,911,351 $ $ $ 4,911,351

Construction-i n-progress 33,207,076 14,024,872 10,614,770 36,617,178

Total capital assets not being

depreciated 38,118,427 14,024,872 10,614,770 41,528,529

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings, equipment and machinery 118,478,059 1,676,355 81,197 120,073,217

Supply system 39,643,628 3,435,249 43,078,877

Distribution system 143,157,973 5,503,165 148,661,138

Total capital assets being depreciated 301,279,660 10,614,769 81,197 311,813,232

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings, equipment and machinery 58,102,437 3,025,679 81,197 61,046,919

Supply system 12,124,592 716,48 12,841,040

Distribution system 35,601,582 2,529,312 38,130,894

Total accumulated depreciation 105,828,611 6,271,439 81,197 112,018,853

Total capital assets being depreciated,

net 195,451 ,049 4,343,330 199,794,379

Net capital assets $ 233,569,476 $ 18,368,202 $ 10,614,770 $ 241,322.908
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 4. Noncurrent Liabilties

As of December 31,2009, Water Works' debt consists of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 A & Band
2006; and Water Revenue Capital Loan Note, Series 2003 (through the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF)).
Interest on these bonds and note is payable semiannually on June 1 and December 1, with principal payable on
December 1. Series 2004 A & B mature on December 1, 2024 and 2017, respectively, and Series 2006 mature on
December 1, 2026. The Series 2003 note matures on December 1, 2022. The bonds and note are redeemable at the
option of Water Works prior to their maturity in whole or, from time to time, in part, in any order of maturity and within
a maturity by lot, at a price of par plus accrued interest to call date.

Changes in long-term obligations for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2009

Beginning Ending Amounts Due

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Within One Year

$ 20,020,000 $ $ 1,695,000 $ 18,325,000 $ 1,750.000

48,660,000 2,110,000 46,550,000 2,180,000

1,822,000 107,000 1,715,000 110,000

2,148,871 2,165,345 2,148,871 2,165,345 1,564,166

$ 72.650.871 $ 2,165,345 $ 6,060,871 $ 68,755,345 $ 5,604,166

2008

Beginning Ending Amounts Due

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Within One Year

$ 21,665,000 $ $ 1,645,000 $ 20,020,000 $ 1,695,000

50,690,000 2,030,000 48,660,000 2,110,000

1,925,000 103,000 1,822,000 107,000

1,961,325 2,148,871 1,961,325 2,148,871 1,534,324

$ 76.241 ,325 $ 2,148,871 $ 5,739,325 $ 72,650,871 $ 5,446,324

Water Revenue Bonds:

Series 2004 A & B

Series 2006

Water Revenue Capital,

Series 2003

Compensated absences

Water Revenue Bonds:

Series 2004 A & B

Series 2006

Water Revenue Capital,

Series 2003

Compensated absences
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 4. Noncurrent Liabilties (Continued)

A summary of the aggregate principal and interest requirements outstanding for the Water Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2004 A is as follows:

Maturing During
Annual Annual Total

Year Ending
Principal Interest Annual

December 31 : Interest Rate Payment Payment Payment

2010 3.25% $ 285,000 $ 221,531 $ 506,531
2011 3.38 290,000 212,269 502,2692012 3.50 300,000 202,481 502,4812013 3.75 315,000 191,981 506,9812014 4.00 325,000 180,169 505,1692015-2019 4.00 1,830,000 695,044 2,525,0442020-2024 4.00-4.25 2,280,000 293,756 2,573,756

$ 5,625,000 $ 1 ,997,231 $ 7,622,231

A summary of the aggregate principal and interest requirement outstanding for the Water Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2004 B is as follows:

Maturing During
Annual Annual Total

Year Ending
Principal Interest Annual

December 31: Interest Rate Payment Payment Payment

2010 3.00% $ 1,465,000 $ 466,75 $ 1,931,475
2011 3.00 1,510,000 422,525 1,932,525
2012 3.25 1,570,000 377,225 1,947,225
2013 4.00 1,625,000 326,200 1,951,200
2014 4.00 1,710,000 261,200 1,971,200

2015-2017 4.00 4,820,000 362,400 5,182,400
$ 12,00 , 000 $ 2,216,025 $ 14.916.025
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 4. Noncurrent Liabilties (Continued)

A summary of the aggregate principal and interest requirements outstanding for the Water Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2006 is as follows:

A summary of the aggregate principal and interest requirements outstanding for the Water Revenue Capital Loan
Note is as follows:

Maturing During Annual Annual Total
Year Ending Principal Interest Annual

December 31: Interest Rate Payment Payment Payment

2010 3.00% $ 110,000 $ 51,450 $ 161,450
2011 3.00 113,000 48,150 161,150
2012 3.00 116,000 44,760 160,760
2013 3.00 120,000 41,280 161,280
2014 3.00 124,000 37,680 161,680

2015-2019 3.00 675,000 130,500 805,500
2020-2022 3.00 457,000 27,690 484,690

$ 1.715,000 $ 381 ,51 0 $ 2.096,510

The water revenue bond and water revenue capital loan note resolutions (Resolutions) provide that future water
customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses of Water Works is pledged for the purpose of paying Series
2003, Series 2004 and Series 2006 bonds. Proceeds from the bonds were used to provide additional infrastructure
needs. The bonds are payable solely from customers net revenues. The Resolutions further require that suffcient
monies be set aside to meet current expenses of Water Works. All remaining monies are to be segregated and
restricted in separate special reserves. These special reserves are reflected as restricted assets on the balance
sheet. The Resolutions also require the issuer maintain insurance coverage of a kind and in an amount which usually
would be carried by private companies engaged in a similar kind of business. Water Works maintains fire and
extended coverage insurance in the amount of $305,122,993 per occurrence on building and contents; in addition,
liability insurance is maintained.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 4. Noncurrent Liabilities (Continued)

A summary of the outstanding debt, principal and interest requirements are as follows:

Pnncipal Annual Payments
Principal and and Interest as a Percentage

Issue Date Year Matunng Interest Remaining Paid in 2009 of Net Revenues
Water Revenue Bonds:

Senes 2004 A 12/1/2004 2024 $ 7,622,231 $ 504,781 4.37%
Senes 2004 B 12/1/2004 2017 14,916,025 1,929,075 16.70
Senes 2006 3/1/2006 2026 65,309,699 4,087,902 35.38

Water Revenue Capital,

Senes 2003 4/16/2003 2022 2,096,510 161,660 1.40

$ 89,94,465 $ 6,683,418 57.85%

Total customer net revenues were $11,554,001. Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are
approximately 58 percent of net revenues.

Note 5. Pension Plan

Water Works has a noncontributory defined benefit single employer pension plan, established by the Board, called
the Des Moines Water Works Pension Plan (the Plan). All full-time Water Works employees and employees who
work at least 1,040 hours in a calendar year or work during two consecutive calendar quarters are eligible to
participate in the Plan. Benefits vest after five years of continuous service and normal retirement is allowed at or after
age 65. Early retirement is allowed without a reduction in benefis beginning at age 55 if the employee's combined
years of service and age are 85 or greater and is allowed with reduced benefis for vested employees with less than
30 years of service beginning at age 55. The pension benefit formula is based upon a percent of average
compensation and the number of years of service with Water Works. A participant's monthly accrued benefit is equal
to 1.5 percent of their average monthly compensation times their years of continuous service with Water Works.
Average monthly compensation is determined by taking the average monthly pay for the 60 consecutive full calendar
months out of the 120 latest calendar months which give the highest average. The Plan also provides death and
disabilty benefits to vested employees. The Plan Administrator is the Board of Trustees of Des Moines Water Works.
The Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. The report may be obtained by writing to or calling the Water Works.

Water Works' annual pension cost and net pension liability for the three years ended 2009 were as follows:

Annual required contribution (ARC)

Interest

Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual pension cost (APC)

Contributions made

(Increase) decrease in net
pension liabilty

Net pension (liability), beginning of year

Net pension (liability), end of year

Percentage of APC contributed

$

2009 2008 2007

1,023,319 $ 545,782 $ 679,631
8,817 29,130 41 ,823

(14,468) (45,753) (65,688)
1,017,668 529,159 655,766
1,023,319 800,000 825,000

5,651 270,841 169,234

(117,563) (388,404) (557,638)
(111,912) $ (117,563) $ (388,404)

100.6% 151.2% 125.8%

$
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 5. Pension Plan (Continued)

The net pension obligation is the pension asset or (liability) that arises from cumulative differences between the ARC
and actual employer contributions. The net pension benefit liability above was computed as part of the annual
actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2010, 2009 and 2008 using the aggregate actuarial cost method. The
aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilties. There were no
significant differences between December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 and January 1, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, which would cause the actuarial valuations not to be representative as of December 31,2009,2008 and
2007. The actuarial assumptions used to compute the pension benefit liability included (a) 7.5 percent investment
rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of 5.0 percent. These amounts were
computed using the RP-2000 Mortality Table with a 3.0 percent cost of living factor increase included.

The Plan's funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at rates that, expressed as percentages of
annual covered payroll, are suffcient to accumulate assets to pay benefis when due. However, as the Plan is
exempt from ERISA funding requirements, any amount may be contributed to the Plan. The suggested employer
contribution rates are determined using the aggregate cost method.

Amounts contributed to the Plan from Water Works are determined by the Board of Trustees of Des Moines Water
Works. The contributions to the Plan in 2009 and 2008 were approximately 8.8 percent and 7.3 percent, respectively,
of the total covered payroll in each year.

As of January 1, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was 90 percent funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $44,385,344 and the actuarial value of assets was $39,789,839, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UML) of $4,595,505. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the Plan) was $11,694,902 and the ratio of UML to covered payroll was 39 percent.

As of January 1, 2009, the Plan was 98 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $42,450,678
and the actuarial value of assets was $41,513,612, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liabilty (UML) of
$937,066. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) was $10,947,799 and the
ratio of UML to covered payroll was 9 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefis. The actuarial value of assets
was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatiity in the market value of investments
over a period of several years. The aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify or separately amortize
unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities. Information about the Plan's funded status and funding progress has been
prepared using the entry age actuarial cost method and is intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and
funding progress of the plan.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 6. Other Postemployment Benefits

Plan description: The Water Works sponsors a single-employer health care plan that provides certain postretirement
health care benefits, in accordance with the policy established by the Board, to all employees who retire from Water
Works after attaining age 55 with 5 years of service. As of December 31,2009, 72 retirees receive postretirement
health care benefits. As of December 31, 2008, 64 retirees received postretirement health care benefits. Water
Works provides a Medicare supplement or equivalent amount to all employees who retire after attaining age 55, if the
sum of their age and years of service are at least 85 or for those who retire after attaining age 65 regardless of length
of service. Employees who retire prior to attaining age 65 with the sum of their age and years of service less than 85
receive a discounted benefi as provided by the plan document. The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial
report.

Fundinq policy: The health insurance plan contributions on behalf of employees are negotiated by management and
the union and governed by the Water Work's union contracts.

The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2009, the
Water Works contributed $141,115. Retirees receiving benefits contributed $92,407. The required contribution of

$99.25 per month for single health coverage and $258.74 for family health coverage is for active members and
retirees under the age of 65. Retirees over the age of 65 contribute varying amounts based on the plan selected.

For fiscal year 2008, the Water Works contributed $128,666. Retirees receiving benefits contributed $74,965. The
required contribution of $74.41 per month for single health coverage and $219.85 for family health coverage is for
active members and retirees under the age of 65. Retirees over the age of 65 contribute varying amounts based on
the plan selected.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obliqation: The Water Work's annual other post-employment benefi (OPEB) cost

(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially
determined in accordance to the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that,
if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years. The following table shows the components of the Water Work's
annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actuarially contributed to the plan and changes in the Water Work's
annual OPEB obligation:

$

2009

349,262 $

29,873

397,565
776,700

141,115

635,585

1,324,347

1,959,932 $

Annual required contribution

Interest on net OPEB obligation

Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost (expense)

Contributions and payments made

Increase in net OPEB obligation

Net OPEB obligation - January 1, 2009

Net OPEB obligation - December 31,2009 $ 1,324,347

31

2008

1,587,484

1,587,484

263,137
1,324,347
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 6. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

The Water Work's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net OPEB
obligations for 2009 and 2008 follows. Fiscal year 2008 was the transition year.

Percentage of

Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB

Fiscal Year Ended OPES Cost Cost Contributed Obligation

December 31,2007 N/A N/A N/A

December 31,2008 $ 1,587,484 17% $ 1,324,347
December 31,2009 776,700 18 1,959,932

Funded status and fundinq proqress: Postemployment Benefi Obligations under GASB Statement No. 45 calculated
as of December 31,2008, the most recent valuation date is as follows:

Total Members
Actuarial Accrued Liability

Current retirees, beneficiaries and dependents

Current active members
Total Actuarial Accrued Liabilty (AAL)

OPEB Plan Assets
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)

$ (2,646,628)

(5,489,938)

(8,136,566)

(8,136,566)

85

199

The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $13,416,248 and the ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 61 percent.

The funded status and funding progress for fiscal year 2008 was based on an actuarial valuation date of
December 31, 2006 and was as follows:

Total Members
Actuarial Accrued Liability

Current retirees, beneficiaries and dependents

Current active members
Total Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)

OPEB Plan Assets
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabilty (UAAL)

$ (2,499,838)

(4,649,856)

(7,149,694)

65

212

(7,149,694)

The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan)was $12,052,777 and the ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 59 percent. The results of the December 31 , 2006 valuation were rolled forward to
December 31,2008.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 6. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probabilty of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality and the health care cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial methods and assumptions: Projections and benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and included in the types of
benefis provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilties and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31,2008 actuarial valuation date, the unit credit method was used. The actuarial assumptions
included a 4.0 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and an annual health care cost
trend rate of 8.0 percent initially, grading down to 5.0 percent in 7 years. The Water Work's unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized over 30 years. The remaining amortization period as of December 31, 2008, was
30 years.

In the December 31,2006 actuarial valuation date, the unit credit method was used. The actuarial assumptions
included a 4.0 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and an annual health care cost
trend rate of 8.0 percent initially, grading down to 5.0 percent in seven years. The Water Work's unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized over 30 years. The remaining amortization period as of December 31,2006 was
30 years.

Note 7. Risk Management

Water Works is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets, errors
and omissions, injuries to employees, natural disasters and malpractice.

Water Works purchases commercial insurance for property and casualty, workers' compensation, employee health,
life and long-term disability insurance. During the last three years, settled claims have not exceeded insurance
coverage.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 8. Commitments

Approximately $9,800,000 related to 2009 contracts has been formally committed as of December 31,2009. In
addition, the Board has approved approximately $10,700,000 of expenditures for capital acquisitions and
improvements, all of which are expected to be expended in 2010.

In 1983, Water Works determined additional water resources would be required for future customer needs. As a
result, the Board has contracted with the United States of America - Army Corps of Engineers, through the state of
Iowa, for water supply storage in the Saylorville Reservoir Project continuing through the life of the project. Under the
contract, Water Works is required to pay a portion of future major renovation costs of the project. Water Works also
pays a portion of the annual operation and maintenance costs of the project. Water Works' portion of operation and
maintenance costs was approximately $6,300 in 2007. Due to a change in methodology of computing the amount,
there was no payment in 2009 and 2008.

On January 5, 2004, the Water Works and City of Des Moines, Iowa entered into a 28E Agreement for the operation,
management and maintenance of the Botanical Center. The Water Works is responsible for the management and
operation of the Botanical Center for the City. All revenues generated and expenses incurred for the operation are
retained by Water Works. The agreement exists for an initial term of January 5,2004 through December 31,2009
and was renewed on January 1,2010 for not more than three successive three-year terms.

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, revenues generated by the Botanical Center were approximately

$679,000 and $688,000, respectively. Expenses were approximately $874,000 and $973,000, respectively.

Note 9. New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements

Water Works implemented the following GASB Statements during the year ended December 31,2009:

. GASB Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endowments. This
Statement establishes consistent standards for the reporting of land and other real estate held as
investments. Endowments were previously required to report their land and other real estate held for
investment purposes at historical cost. However, such investments are reported at fair value by similar
entities, such as pension plans. The Statement requires endowments to report land and other real estate
investments at fair value. The changes in the fair value are to be reported as investment income. This
Statement had no effect on Water Works in the current year.

As of December 31,2009, the GASB also had issued several statements not yet implemented by the Water Works.
The statements which might impact Water Works are as follows:

. GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, issued July 2007, will
be effective for the Water Works beginning with its year ending December 31,2010. This Statement
provides guidance regarding how to identify, account for and report intangible assets. The new standard
characterizes an intangible asset as an asset that lacks physical substance, is nonfinancial in nature and
has an initial useful life extending beyond a single reporting period.
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Des Moines Water Works

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 9. New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements (Continued)

. GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, issued June
2008, will be effective for the Water Works beginning with its year ending December 31,2010. This
Statement wil improve how state and local governments report information about derivative instruments in
their financial statements. The Statement specifically requires governments to measure most derivative
instruments at fair value in their financial statements that are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The guidance in this Statement also addresses
hedge accounting requirements.

The Water Works' management has not yet determined the effect these Statements will have on Water Works'
financial statements.
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Des Moines Water Works

Required Supplementary Information
Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Unfunded

Actuarial (Over UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued funded) Percentage
Fiscal Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Year Valuation Net Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Ended Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ¡(b-a)/cl

2008 12/31/06 $ $ 7,149,694 $ (7,149,694) - % $ 12,052,777 59.3%
2009 12/31/08 8,136,566 (8,136,566) 13,416,248 60.6

Note: Fiscal year 2008 is the transition year for GASB Statement No. 45

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial valuation date as of December 31, 2008.

Additional information follows:

a. The actuarial method used to determine the ARC is the unit credit method.

b. There are no plan assets.

c. The actuarial assumptions included: (1) 4 percent investment rate of return and (b) a health care cost trend rate of 8 percent initially, grading

down to 5 percent in 7 years.

d. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over 30 years.

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Des Moines Water Works
Pension Plan

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

(2) (3) (6)
(1) Actuarial Unfunded (4) UAAL as a

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued AAL Funded (5) Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability (UAAL) Ratio Annual Covered of PayrollDate Assets (AAL) (2) - (1) (1) / (2) Payroll r(2) - (1)1 / (5)

01/01/2005 $ 32,738,546 $ 32,738,546 $ 100.00% $ 10,688,95 - %
01/01/2006 35,987,086 35,987,086 100.00 10,826,006
01/01/2007 39,967,624 39,967,624 100.00 10,773,915
01/01/2008 43,038,338 40,236,733 (2,801,605) 107.00 11,058,383 (25)01/01/2009 41,513,612 42,450,678 937,066 98.00 10,947,799 901/01/2010 39,789,839 44,385,34 4,595,505 90.00 11,694,902 39

The Actuarial Required Contribution (ARC) is calculated using the aggregate actuarial cost method. Information in the above schedule is calculated

using the entry age actuarial cost method as a surrogate for the funding progress of the Plan.

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Des Moines Water Works
Pension Plan

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Contributions from the Employer

Year Ended December 31 :

Annual Required

Contribution

Actual

Contribution

Percentage
Contribution

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.

$ 896,193
941 ,548

885,540
679,631

545,782
1,023,319

'l.q

$ 800,000
896,000

885,990
825,000

800,000

1,023,319

89.27%

95.16
100.05

121.39

146.58

100.00
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Des Moines Water Works
Pension Plan

Note to Required Supplementary Information

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial valuations
at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Actuarial valuation:

Frequency
Latest date

Cost method

Annual

January 1,2010
Aggregate cost method

Amortization Not applicable under Aggregate Cost Method. The Aggregate Cost Method

does not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities.

They are amortized through normal cost.

Asset valuation method Fair value is adjusted by spreading the expected value minus the actual

value over four years. The total actuarial value of assets falls within the

applicable corridor limits.

Assumptions:

Investment rate of return

Salary increases
Retirement age

7.5%

5.0% annual increases until retirement

The later of meeting the rule of 85 or age 58, but not later than age 65.

Mortality RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table, male and female, projected to 2005

with scale M.

Rate of withdrawal V Table from August 1992 Pension Forum, multiplied by 0.60

Cost of living 3.0% to project benefits and compensation limitations

In addition to the above assumptions, an estimate of the Plan's expenses is included in normal cost.
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